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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed
to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on
GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of
giving information with regard to Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited. The directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair
and reasonable.

ERBERXS AR E (B AIER
TRIER) z2EE

RIERBOEN - DRMELEBEMERIATL
THARSEREREARZATREH—E
tHzmE  BEEREZALTETHERER
ZELRAZERERR  YERSBEEBRFZ
ZRAFFHRERE - BIERZBES AR
REMBERTAXREECEXRAME
RRESE -

HRAIERETZ2RARABRFTRMEE - £4
EREEBCEFTRBRBXMERETEZ
REARZBRAZTE R AR  BREEER
BEAXREECRSSASREBEEZNS -

FEERHLEEMBERRBILREFBHAERS
ERAREAREZARUITEE HH
B T BN NEREMZR - AR
KRBT AARRE 2B HARTT
EEREFEZEAND M5 BUZ Ef 1B K&
BEMEL -

ABE(EMEEGER)BERAAEEEEI
R RERAERBEE) DEREBRAS
RGMBRARBIERES LR ZEE
REEBEMNEE(ZEBR)ARRAFZEHR -
BEERFEH—UAETHERR  SEM
RRRMERE (1) AREAHEREZTERT
EEERELTTE - BWERERKD © (2) &
BEVEBEREMEE  BERREMHE
MATEERE : RQ) AMEMKELER
DREBEAFERRBITEL  WARFA
B2 ERRBRBIKE



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Report of the Directors

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Financial Information

NAEEFR

TREHRE

EIEE S W kDT

EELSREEABEBN

e

S

FEWE

EE

mR

>
off

B AR

op
B

BEkEMEEKER

kp

A MBI R

AR R

ARA B F AR MY R

MBEME

ZE NS ER

CONTENTS
Ef=

11
15
23
36

38

40
41
42
44
46

136

SMEEGER)BRAT



Annual Report 2014

CORPORATION INFORMATION
NEIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)

Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive Office)
Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Resigned on 23/05/2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Xie Xuan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhang Daorong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wu Jixue (Chairman)

Mr. Xie Xuan

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zheng Hongliang (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Daorong
Mr. Xie Xuan
(Appointed on 23/05/2014)
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(Resigned on 23/05/2014)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Ting Lok
(Resigned on 23/05/2014)
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(Appointed on 23/05/2014)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
Mr. Xie Xuan

AUDITORS
Cheng & Cheng Limited

SOLICITORS
As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

EFE

YITES
BE S ()

W 5L (1T AR )
R
B A

BRHE L

ERITES
EHRTE
(R—T—MERA-+=HEE)

BIFHITES
MHgEB Rt
RBHREL
BAI =kt

BREE
B

EREST
RIS ()
A2 5
AT 52 e

FNEEE
MBS (E/E)
EALER e

BIAT 250

REESE

BPAT 50 e ()

RIS

BE KA
(R=ZT-—MFRA-+=ABEE)
EHREE
(R=T—MFRA == AFHE)

ATHE
R 28 % &
(R—Z—MERA - +=HEHT)
EHRITE
(R—Z—MERA-+=BEZT)

RIERR
ESRLE
EilLER e

A
WG AEHAERAA

REM
FAE RS

Conyers Dill & Pearman



HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

Room 2102, 21/F.

Fu Fai Commercial Centre

27, Hillier Street

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

WEBSITE
www.airnet.com.hk

STOCK CODE
08025

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada

Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

ZE NS ER

CORPORATION INFORMATION

AT
WHEEREEE LI
£
EIR

EFE275%
EREBEETL
21122102%

st

www.airnet.com.hk

[ L

08025

EE 3 g Y

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Rzt B 50 % 38 R 485

Royal Bank of Canada

Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

SMEEGER)BRAT



Annual Report 2014

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

With the Chinese gross domestic product growth slowed to
7.4 per cent in 2014, the slowest since 1990, the downside
risks have increased as the year unfolded. The expectation
of weak Chinese economy, suppressed capital investments
and a mild global recovery, all contributing to having a
negative effect on the Chinese consumer confidence for the
Chinese economy. Facing the mediocre outlook for ongoing
Chinese economic growth, the Group will continue to exert
stringent control over its business operations. The Board’s
responsibility remains to produce and deliver sustainable
value to shareholders, as it guides the Group to deploy
various business plans amidst these challenging market
conditions and to take necessary steps to co-ordinate the
implementation of strategies.

During the past year, there was a 17.8% decrease in the
turnover of the group for from HK$153,756,000 of 2013
to HK$126,395,000 of 2014 and the loss for the year
decreased from approximate HK$23,988,000 of 2013
to approximate HK$18,596,000 of 2014. The loss is
attributable to the overall downturn in the PRC economic
conditions as well as the increased competition and
challenging market conditions in the IPTV management
business industry.

During the first half of the year the management contracts
were not totally successful due to fierce competition of the
internet media market of the People’s Republic of China,
lower viewers’ spending and the various new regulatory
measures installed by the PRC government in the 1st and
2nd quarters of 2014, hence rendering the profitability
of the contract not entirely satisfactory to the Directors’
view. In addition, despite of the positive contributions from
the managed operations, there has also been additional
amount of re-investments needed in order to stay
competitive that has affected the depreciation costs for
maintenance. Therefore the Board and the management
had been actively diversifying into various business sectors
that would be provide sustainable value while having an
efficient usage of capital. During such time the Board has
taken a very diligent and careful approach in setting up
the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity Investment Enterprise.
With the establishment of the Qianhai Foreign-invested
Equity Investment Enterprise the Company would be
well positioned to benefit and to offer a range of financial
services that are currently being promoted in the PRC.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Hong Kong currently has become the largest offshore
RMB financing and asset management center, at the end
of February 2014 RMB deposits and outstanding RMB
certificates of deposits totaled more than RMB 1.1tr, or
70% of offshore RMB liquidity. According to the Hong
Kong financial secretary, Mr. John Tsang Chun-Wah, “the
full convertibility of the RMB and China’s capital account
liberalization will provide great opportunities for further
strengthening the status of Hong Kong as an international
financial center” (source: Asiamoney May 2014). The Board
shares the same view as Mr. Tsang and in anticipation of
these increase in market opportunities, the Group will have
the opportunity utilize the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity
Investment Enterprise for the formulation of the foreign-
invested equity investment fund, and the establishment of
cross-border RMB business. In addition, to further enhance
the private equity expertise of the Group, a joint venture
was also formed with a party that is experienced with
conducting private equity business within the PRC.

During the second half of the year, with the shareholders’
approval the Group finalized the acquisition of a PRC
onshore investment management business and an offshore
business restructuring services provider in order to further
enhance the coverage of the Group’s core business of
Management Services moving forward.

In addition, the Company has also been equipped with
senior management level professionals with extensive
experiences and track record in the financial sector and real
estate sector therefore enabling to expand the Company’s
knowledge base in further development of the Company’s
private equity business in the PRC. Also |, Xie Xuan, have
many years of experience in the real estate financing, real
estate development, and as well as restructuring services
in the real estate sector. With the board’s expertise and
leadership the Company feels it has greatly positioned itself
to provide more services in the financial sector.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value for the financial management
services that the Group will be concentrating. The
operational values include financial structuring, bottom
line, top line core business, and top line expansion. In
addition, with the board’s real estate back ground as well
as reputation they would enhance the origination process
and greatly improve on the deal flow.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers,
vendors, banks business partners, consultants and
shareholders for their support and trust generously given
to the Group. The Board also expresses gratitude to the
management and staff for their work and dedication during
the past years.

Mr. Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
HTEE n—JLnFFH& jfﬁ

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover and loss attributable to shareholders

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$126,395,000, with
HK$124,456,000 classified under discontinued operations.
(2013: HK$153,756,000, classified under discontinued
operations) which decreased by approximately 17.8% as
compared to that of the previous financial year.

The decrease in total turnover is attributed to the decrease
of Guangdong Yingxin’s turnover which was under
management of the Company via the management service
agreement.

The audited consolidated loss from operations for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was approximately
HK$18,596,000 which has decreased by 19.1% compared
with the corresponding period last year, HK$22,988,000.
The decrease in loss for the year is mainly attributable to the
positive fair value changes on the contingent consideration
payable amounting to approximately HK$15,227,000.00.
This amount compensated the current year increase in
the Group’s administrative and operating expenses which
included about HK$3.9 million of legal and professional fees
for the acquisition of the new business and another HK$4.2
million for amortisation of intangible assets.

The board of directors are of the opinion that the Company
is solvent. The auditors’ emphasis of matter is based on the
technical accounting aspect of addressing the Company’s
current liabilities is greater than its current assets which
resulted in a net current liabilities of HK$70,417,000).
However, taking into account of the non-current asset item
of available-for-sale investments of HK$71,682,000 would
sufficiently cover the net current liabilities.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 was approximately HK$1,139,000 (2013:
HK$1,097,000) which was increased by approximately
3.8% as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s
borrowing consists of an amount due to the Company’s
substantial shareholder of HK$26,245,000, and an amount
due to a director of HK$5,429,000. The Group had a
cash balance of approximately HK$20,316,000 (2013:
HK$50,175,000).

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy
to maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars,
or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries,
maintaining a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 has increased from HK$148,551,890 as at
31 December 2013 to HK$176,182,556.

Gearing ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided
by the total capital plus net debt, was 78.15% (2013:
92.90%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
employed a total of 46 employees (as at 31 December
2013: 6), of which 3 were located in Hong Kong and the
remaining 42 were located in the PRC and 1 in USA.
The Group’s remuneration policies are in line with the
prevailing market practices and formulated on the basis of
performance and experience of the employees. The salary
and related benefits of the employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Deregistration and winding-up of various subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the
operating costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within
the Group which no longer add value to, nor generate any
income attributable to the Group, should be deregistered,
or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiary which is currently in the deregistration
process is: Sinobase Asia Limited.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREN R NAOT

Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily
wound up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting
Limited, BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network
Limited.

Operational Review

During the period under review, the Group was focusing
its effort in its management services while enhancing a
successful corporate synergy with its strategic partners.
Furthermore the Group continues to research, develop
and explore investment opportunities which are strategic
to its business operations. Via the revenue generated by
the services provided and other assets from the group it
has sufficient cashflow generated to operate its business
as a going concern. The Company does not have any
financial difficulties to an extent that may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business.

The Board, looking forward, views that by concentrating
on providing our services and expanding on its financial
services will enhance the company’s incremental business
and the future value of the company.

Management Services and Information Technology
Division

During the period under review the management contracts
for the Information Technology division were not totally
successful due to fierce competition of the internet media
market of the People’s Republic of China, lower viewers’
spending and the various new regulatory measures installed
by the PRC government in the 1st and 2nd quarters of
2014, hence rendering the profitability of the contract not
entirely satisfactory to the Directors’ view.

In addition, despite of the positive contributions from
the managed operations, there has also been additional
amount of re-investments needed in order to stay
competitive that has affected the depreciation costs for
maintenance. Therefore the Board and the management
had been actively diversifying into various business sectors
that would be provide sustainable value while having an
efficient usage of capital.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

With this strategy the Board and Management believes it is
in a good position to achieve a higher level of performance
and to navigate through this difficult and competitive market
conditions within the industry.

Financial Services

During 1st and 2nd quarter the Board has taken a very
diligent and careful approach in setting up the Qianhai
Foreign-invested Equity Investment Enterprise. With the
establishment of the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity
Investment Enterprise the Company would be well
positioned to benefit and to offer a range of financial
services that are currently being promoted in the PRC.

Hong Kong currently has become the largest offshore
RMB financing and asset management center, at the end
of February 2014 RMB deposits and outstanding RMB
certificates of deposits totaled more than RMB 1.1tr, or
70% of offshore RMB liquidity. According to the Hong
Kong financial secretary, Mr. John Tsang Chun-Wah, “the
full convertibility of the RMB and China’s capital account
liberalization will provide great opportunities for further
strengthening the status of Hong Kong as an international
financial center” (source: Asiamoney May 2014). The Board
shares the same view as Mr. Tsang and in anticipation of
these increase in market opportunities, the Group will have
the opportunity utilize the Qianhai Foreign-invested Equity
Investment Enterprise for the formulation of the foreign-
invested equity investment fund, and the establishment of
cross-border RMB business. In addition, to further enhance
the private equity expertise of the Group, a joint venture
was also formed with a party that is experienced with
conducting private equity business within the PRC.

During the second half of the year, with the shareholders’
approval the Group finalized the acquisition of a PRC
onshore investment management business and an offshore
business restructuring services provider in order to further
enhance the coverage of the Group’s core business of
Management Services moving forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
HTEE n—JLnFFH& jfﬁ

In addition, the Company has also been equipped with
senior management level professionals with extensive
experiences and track record in the financial sector and real
estate sector therefore enabling to expand the Company’s
knowledge base in further development of the Company’s
private equity business in the PRC. With the board’s
expertise and leadership the Company feels it has greatly
positioned itself to provide more services in the financial
sector.

Together with the experiences of the Board, the Group
has the leadership and track record to achieve and create
operational added value for the financial management
services that the Group will be concentrating. The
operational values include financial structuring, bottom
line, top line core business, and top line expansion. In
addition, with the board’s real estate back ground as well
as reputation they would enhance the origination process
and greatly improve on the deal flow.

Furthermore, apart from the aforementioned operations,
the Group continues to research, develop and explore
investment opportunities which are strategic to its business
operations and which will contribute significantly to the
return of the Company’s shareholders.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xie Xuan

Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 45, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has
over 19 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in
the People’s Republic of China. He graduated from
Jinan University, the PRC with a degree in International
Economics.

Mr. Xiao Jing

Mr. Xiao Jing, aged 34, graduated from the University
of Southern California. He was recruited at International
Business Machines Corporation (IBM) in 2001 as Trading
Manager. From 2002 to 2005, he established AB
International Co. Ltd., Billion Image Co. Ltd and Tri-G Co.
Ltd respectively in the United States. In 2006, he founded
the Taylor Investment & Management Consultants Co.
Ltd. in China, which mainly engaged in commercial real
estate investment and development in Mainland China. In
addition, Mr. Xiao established AB International Investment
Co. and served as chairman in U.S.A. From 2009 to
present, he serves as Executive Director of Guangzhou
Pearl River Yunsheng Textile Market Administration Co.,
Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Real Estate
Management Co. Ltd.

Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Mr. Chu, aged 31, holds EMBA Master Degree from
Zhongshan University of China. From September 2001 to
November 2009, Mr. Chu was Assistant to the Managing
Director of Pearl River Investment Group; July 2005
to October 2009, as Managing Director of Guangzhou
Pearl River Yunsheng Textile Market Administration Co.,
Ltd., Guangzhou Pearl River Commercial Real Estate
Management Co. Ltd. and Guangzhou Pearl River
Commercial Logistic Investment Co. Ltd. From May 2012
until now, as the Deputy Managing Director of Pearl River
Investment Group.
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EZNEMEEAEB[N

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 45, joined the Company in October 2008.
Mr. Qiu graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s
Republic of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
Mr. Qiu has worked in the advertising business for more
than 12 years and was the general manager of Guangzhou
Wavecom Communication and Advertising Limited from
1992 to 2006, and is now the general manager of South
Pearl Limited, both companies having been acquired by the
Company on 24 December 2007.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 43, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PHD in theoretic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he
is the department head and researcher of Real Estates
Finance Research Center, of the Beijing University
Economics Faculty. Dr. Feng is an independent compliance
advisor in the publicly listed company Sky Land Resources
Limited, and is an independent director in the publicly listed
company Guang Yu Development Limited, both companies
being listed in the People’s Republic of China. He now
serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of China
Huirong Financial Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01290).

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Resigned on 23 May 2014)

Mr. Lo was born in September 1953 in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lo graduated from the University of Wisconsin — Madison
in business administration and holds the Master of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong, Postgraduate
Certificate in Sustainable Business from the University of
Cambridge. Mr. Lo is licensed as a Responsible Officer
by the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong Kong for
providing Type 6 (corporate finance) advisory. Mr. Lo is a
Chartered Accountant in England & Wales and a Canadian
Chartered Professional Accountant (FCA), member of
International Bar Association (IBA), member of Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb.). Mr. Lo had worked with
Peat Marwick and also PriceWaterhouse of Canada as
Principal.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 69, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad. He
has published more than 262 papers and 18 books in the areas
of economics, finance and management.

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 43, is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Tax Agent in the People’s Republic of China.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Economics and a Masters
degree in Business Administration. He has over 17 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and taxation. He is
currently a project manager in a firm of certified public
accountants in the PRC.

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

Mr. Zheng, aged 56, was graduated from the Department
of Economic of Renmin University of China with a Master
Degree in 1987. Currently Mr. Zheng is a researcher of
the Institute of Economics of the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences and a doctoral student supervisor of
the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences. Mr. Zheng’s field of research mainly covers the
areas in respect of microeconomics, comparative study
of corporate system, theory of corporate governance,
and revolution of state enterprises. Meanwhile, Mr. Zheng
is currently the Executive Vice-Editor-in-Chief and the
director of editorial office of Economic Research Journal
("CEEERFFE )", which is a leading PRC journal in economic
theory research published by the Institute of Economics of
Chinese Academy of Social Science.
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EZNEMEEAEB[N

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Mr. Lam Ting Lok (Resigned on 23/05/2014)

Mr. Lam Ting Lok, aged 41, has over 13 years’ experience
in the accounting and financial industry. He has extensive
experience in IPO, M&A, fund raising and corporate
advisory. He started his career in an international audit firm
in 1995 and then devoted himself in the corporate finance
and fund management fields since 2000. Mr. Lam Ting Lok
holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a charterholder of the Chartered Financial
Analyst. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited and
Wonderful Sky Finance Group Holdings Limited, both of
which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Appointed on 23/05/2014)
Mr. Lo was born in September 1953 in Hong Kong. Mr.
Lo is a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales and
a Canadian Chartered Professional Accountant (FCA),
member of International Bar Association (IBA), member
of Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (MCIArb.). Mr. Lo had
worked with Peat Marwick and also PriceWaterhouse of
Canada as Principal.

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Lo is the director of the
following subsidiaries:

Asian Information Resources Finance Limited Shenzhen
Yaxin Equity investment Management Limited

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John

Mr. Kong, aged 56, joined the Group in October 2005.
Mr. Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in Applied
Accounting and Finance from the Baptist University of Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over 12
years experience in commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit/(loss) before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2014 by principal
activities is as follows:
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ARBEF(EFEUEREFTERS
ARARRBRAEBHE_T—NF+ A
=+ HLEFEZEECHBHERE -

REBREBRBEI S 2EERT

ARBZETBEBRREER - BRANEBE AR
ﬂix%i‘xz.ﬁ\ %Eﬁ iR A B S WmR M

CAEEBE_T-NFET_A=1t— EI
tif?ﬁzg%%@ﬂﬁz = 5% BB MR B AT
M/ (BRI

Loss before

Turnover taxation
EXE KkiiaiesE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
By Principal activities: BXEEBE D
Management and consultancy service income & ¥ K & 5 R 4% U A 1,939 (2,278)
Internet broadband business management EHMERERERER
and internet protocol television service B B AR IRIS WA
income (discontinued) (BRIEEE) 124,456 (17,632)
126,395 (19,910)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2014 by geographical
areas is as follows:

AEBEE_ZT—NF+A=+T—HLHF
EikiE E 5 Z R R BR T AT E R o AT a0
T

Loss before

Turnover taxation
B¥HE RBinmsE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FHAIT

By geographical areas R &l o
PRC A Y] 126,395 (19,910)
126,395 (19,910)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 38 to 45 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2014.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as
at the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this
annual report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25%
of the Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all
times been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year is set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2013: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)

Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Yat Hong

Mr. Qiu Yue

Dr. Feng Ke

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
(Resigned on 23/05/2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zheng Hongliang

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company, Dr. Feng Ke, Mr. Xiao Jing
and Mr. Qiu Yue shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has an unexpired service contract that is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, none of the directors had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to
the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or subsisted during
the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 29 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements constitute
the connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors of the Company had reviewed
the connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and have confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of Group;
either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favorable than those available to or from
independent third parties;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions;

(i) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
by the Group in this annual report in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rule 20.54. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares,
or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFO”)
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company
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Number of issued Shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FHERTRIHE  SHRERME

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at 31 December
Through 2014
Directly spouse or Through EXATR
beneficially  minor children controlled Beneficiary —E-ME
owned BREEY corporation of a trust Total +ZA=t-H
ERELNHA FREFT  EAREEE fERREA 5 2ERTRBEM
Directors EZ
Mr.ChuYatHong  K—fi%4E - - 518,014,782 - 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)
(Bft1)
Mr. Xie Xuan Eilihikd - - 518,014,782 - 518,014,782 29.40%
(Note 1)
(Bt1)
Mr. Qiu Yue g 16,430,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,050,436 1.93%
(Note 2)
(ko)
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Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour
House Limited, which is accustomed to
acting in accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s
instructions who is its sole director. Mr. Chu
Yat Hong holds 90% of the company shares
and the company is the beneficial owner as
to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics International
Limited.

Note 2:  The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace
Limited, which is incorporated in Samoa,
and which is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu
Yue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2014, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(B)

Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as was known to
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed
or taken to have, an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, were as

follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

Name of Shareholder

REEH

Capacity
St
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BEFEEWE

(B) FERRNAASZIRHG - HEAKRY X
AHZERRRE

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=+—H E&=
WABTITHAHTA U TAL(EER
A BT IR B O ) A AR 17 K2 48 B8 AR
DHER AR ABREEREEREE
F R EAE GBI EXVER 2 K30 B A A
RAIWEZERIABMT ¢

(i) RRHZHFE

Percentage of

Glamour House Limited

Asian Dynamics International Limited

Century Field Limited

Note 1:

Note 2:

(Note 1)

RpEEER (1)
Beneficial owner (Note 2)

BB A(ME2)
Beneficial owner

EEABA

The controlled corporation is Asian
Dynamics International Limited, which is
beneficially owned as to 67.18% by Glamour
House Limited.

The controlled corporation is Glamour
House Limited, which is beneficially owned
as to 90% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which
is the beneficial owner as to 67.18% of
Asian Dynamics International Limited.

Interest of a controlled corporation

the Company’s

issued Shares

as at

31 December 2014

EARAT

Number of R-E-ME
Shares +=-B=+-H
BBHE ZEETRBEDLL
518,014,782 29.40%
517,896,132 29.39%
276,306,666 15.68%
MEE1 % X B /A Asian

Dynamics International

Limited * FiGlamour House

Limited B 2= H67.18% ©
MizE2 : 3% X &£ £ B A Glamour
House Limited * B %8 — M1
FEEBEREEIN% W&
Asian Dynamics International
Limited 2 67.18% # #5 ~ &
@B A °
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(ii) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares
Nil

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December
2014, the Directors of the Company were not
aware of any other person (other than the
Directors and the Supervisors of the Company)
who had an interest and short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the issued share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures in the Company or any other body
corporate granted to any Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
spouse or minor children to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any
conflicts of interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDER

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited,
Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Xie Xuan, there was no other
person as at 31 December 2014 who was directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the shares then in
issue of the Company and who was able, as a practicable
matter, to direct or influence the management of the
Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Cheng & Cheng Limited was first appointed as auditor of
the Company on 3 December 2012 upon the retirement of
Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have
been audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited. Cheng & Cheng
Limited retired and offers themselves for re-appointment as
auditor of the Company at the next annual general meeting
of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
recognises that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a
balance of interests between the shareholders, customers,
creditors, employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules, the Board will continue to monitor and revise
the Company code to bring our corporate governance
practices in line with the changes in the environment and
requirements of the Code. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Company has complied with all the provisions of the
Code, for the year ended 31 December 2014, except:

(i) under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and subject
to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision. However, all
the Non-executive Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meetings pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended
31 December 2014.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on
behalf of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that
it is the Directors’ responsibility to create value for the
shareholders as a whole and safeguard the best interests
of the Company and the shareholders by discharging its
duties in a dedicated, diligent and prudent manner on the
principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of eight Directors, with five
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), Mr.
Xiao Jing (Chief Executive), Mr. Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Qiu Yue
and Dr. Feng Ke; and three independent non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Mr. Zhang Daorong and Mr.
Zheng Hongliang. They are professionals in different areas
and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

BOARD PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Proposed regular Board meeting dates for a year are
informed to each Director at the beginning of the year.
Formal notice of at least 14 days will be given in respect of
a regular meeting. For special board meeting, reasonable
notice will be given. Directors participated, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication in the
Board meetings. The Board of Directors meets regularly at
least 4 times a year. The Directors participated in person
or through other means of communication. All notices
of board meetings were given to all Directors, who were
given an opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis
of major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses,
including relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also
seek independent professional advice in performing their
duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary. Minutes of
each board meeting will be kept and are open for inspection
at any reasonable time on request by any Director.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INSURANCE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of the legal action against the Directors.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
The Company has established formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new
directors. The procedures and process of appointment,
re-election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company’s Articles of Association. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board shall not, whilst holding
such office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be
taken into account in determining the number of Directors
to retire in each year. Accordingly, as at the date of this
report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being the chairman of the Company,
is not subject to retirement by rotation. Other relevant
Articles state that all Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy should be subject to re-election by shareholders
at their first annual general meeting after appointment, a
retired Director shall be eligible for re-election. All Directors
should retire by rotation at least once every three years. The
nomination committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors.
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rEERWRE
During the year, 10 Board meetings and 1 annual general RER - KT+ AEEeeH N —ABRE
meeting (“AGM”) were held. Details of the attendance ofthe BEAS([KREBEAE]) BFBEEKE
Directors are as follows. gREFTDEAT
Board of Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual general
Directors EE Directors Committee Committee Committee meeting
EEE BHEEE REZEE FWEEE REEEXE
Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) SEEE(TE) 10/10 N/A/ N8 1 1 11
Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive) BRERE (TR EH) 410 NA/TER  NA/TER  NA/TER 0/1
Mr. Chu Yat Hong K—mik 1710 NA/TEE  NA/TEE  NA/TER 0/
Mr. Qiu Yue B#xE 910  NA/TER  NA/TER  NA/TER 17
Dr. Feng Ke BREL 510  NA/TER 1N NA/TER 11
Non-Exceutive Directors EHITESE
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond ESRLE(FEE)
(Vice-Chairman) 44 NA/TER  NA/TER NA/TER 11
Independent Non-Executive BiIkHTEE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue TES%E 4110 44 NA/TEH 17 0/1
Mr. Zhang Daorong RERILE 4110 3/4 01 NA/TER 0/
Mr. Zheng Hongliang ARy 3/10 34 NIA/FBRE 11 01
On 23 May 2014, Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond resigned and H-_Z—MNE&EHRA-+=H - FE@(??EE%
Mr. Xie Xuan was appointed as member of the Nomination {EXR#HELEEZTAIZEREESKE -
Committee to replace Mr. Lo’s vacancy. BERESLAE 2T -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopts a board diversity policy and discusses
all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue
to be made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon
the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Besides, Directors
should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors will be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training
courses at the Company’s expenses.
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According to the records maintained by the Company, the
current Directors received the following training with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director
of a listing company in compliance with the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the Year.

Corporate Governance
Updates on Laws Rules &

REARBFE R BEEERAFE
BEXUATEHRLETARESZAE - Bt
BEZEI NETEERESERRZE
EERTH -

Accounting Financial/
Management or

Regulations Other Professional Skills
tEES BRES KA bEELBERES - HA
BBz RHER REABzRHER
Attended Attended
Read Seminars or Read Seminars or
Materials Briefing Materials Briefings
HEwHE g
Directors = MG BiRE GEEE R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman) WELE(EE) Y,/ & N/& Y/ & N/&
Mr. Xiao Jing (Chief Executive) BB (T H#EE) Y/ N/%& Y/ % N/%&
Mr. Chu Yat Hong K—MEkE Y/ & N/& Y/ N/ &
Mr. Qiu Yue EpMISE 4 Y/ R N/& - N/ &
Dr. Feng Ke BRHEL Y,/ & Y/ & Y/ & Y/ %
Independent Non-Executive BIEBITEE
Directors
Mr. Wu Jixue BB %E Y/ & N/& Y/ R N/&
Mr. Zhang Daorong RiBREE Y/ & N/& Y/ & Y/ R
Mr. Zheng Hongliang B Rkt Y/ & N/ & Y/ & N/ &
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE X ERITHEE

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Xie Xuan and the Chief
Executive is Mr. Xiao Jing, and their roles with the company
are separate. The Chairman provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the
Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally. Mr. Xie Xuan and Mr. Xiao Jing
does not have any material/relevant relationships.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established.
The current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue,
an Independent Non-executive Director, and the other
members are Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and Mr. Xie Xuan.

Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should
establish a remuneration committee with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties. The Company, has established a remuneration
committee as required under the code provision B.1.1.
The role and function of the remuneration committee
includes the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all Executive Directors, including benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and to make recommendations to
the board regarding the remuneration of Non-Executive
Directors. The remuneration committee should consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the year under review, one meetings of the
remuneration committee was held.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
it comprised of namely Mr. Zheng Hongliang, Mr. Zhang
Daorong and Mr. Xie Xuan. The chairman of the committee
is Mr. Zheng Hongliang, an Independent Non-Executive
director. The committee considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

The nomination committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board, assessing the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

On 23 May 2014, Mr. Xie Xuan was appointed member of
the Committee in replacement of Mr. Lo Mun Lam Raymond
who resigned on the same date.

During the year, the committee considered and resolved
that all the existing Directors shall be recommended to be
retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will
retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Wu Jixue and
Mr. Zheng Hongliang, and has adopted terms of reference
governing the authorities and duties of the audit committee.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has reviewed
the draft of this Annual report and the audited financial
statements and has provided advice and comments
thereon. During the year under review four meetings of the
audit committee was held. The audit committee has met
with the auditors twice within the year under review.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year under review, Cheng & Cheng Limited have
been appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

The audit committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit
functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the total fee
paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the Company’s external auditor is set out
below:

TEERRSE
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ARBCERAIZER ETARRNFES.281F 2R
- RUBEZEREE - BRERBEHBUIF
WITESHEK  BRREREE(ZEET
fB)  M@BrEREAzEE - WEHFEE
EECLZBEERRBREBE 2 BEHE - B
ZEGZIERERARIMREEAKEZHM
BRBIEFMASERE ERZESCEMN
AEFRBEEZMBHRR 2 NG - L Hit
REZBLER - ROEFER BXEE
ERITTHAEZ NEBEFEARN  BFRZ
BeRZEMBITMAEH

A2 S50 T % 42 251 B 37 B
REBEFER  BBGHMEBHMARD A
BRI RAAFINEZIET -

ARBEZZBGAEZERBINEZEE
REZINEZBENFTET ZERFERET
- BRZIFRBTHFEERAKEHREI
EEEBRTHZE -

HE-T-MET-A=+—BLFER
ADT 25N BB R BB R IR
BmEdk Y B RERENT

2014 2013
—T—QE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Type of Services AR 75 iE 2R
Audit Service FEIZRB 650,000 608,000
Non-audit Service FEBEIZ AR 380,000 -
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as
at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s results and
cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014 and are
properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties which may affect the Company’s business
or cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditor’s reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

On an annual basis the internal control process was
performed periodically, while the Directors have reviewed
and are satisfied with their ability to comply with the
policies installed as part of the Group’s internal control
system, including, in particular, financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training programs and budget.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary, Mr. Lo Man Lam, Raymond,
maintains a high standard of corporate governance and has
complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review all Constitutional documents
have been filed and updated on the GEM & Company’s
websites.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions put
forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company after each shareholder
meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However,
pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

General meetings may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one shareholder of the Company which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in
the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that
such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings
may be convened by the Board provided that any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, if a
shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office.

The Notice (i) must include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (ii) must be signed by the shareholder concerned
and signed by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on
the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of
election of the Candidate as a director of the Company
without adjourning the general meeting, shareholders
are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Board
of Directors/Company Secretary at the Company’s
head office. For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s)
must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the Company’s head office and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed
as required by law.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to
the shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM
Listing Rules and uses a number of formal communications
channels to account to shareholders and investors for the
Company.

These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with
the Board; (i) the Company replying to the enquires from
shareholders timely; (iv) updated and key information of
the Company available on website of the Company; (v)
the Company’s website offering communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors;
and (vi) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong
serves the shareholders regarding all share registration
matters. Also, the chairman of the board would attend
the annual general meeting and he would also arrange for
the chairmen of the other committees to attend. In case
of the absence, of the chairman of such committees, he
would invite another member of the committee to attend.
These persons would be available to answer questions
at the annual general meeting. The chairman of the
independent board committee would also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
a connected transaction or any other transaction that is
subject to requires independent shareholders’ approval.
The external auditor would also be arranged to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the
independent auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor independence.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate
governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavour to take the necessary actions to ensure
compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B I BEN RS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 38 to 135, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and the Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matter: Going concern uncertainty
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
3(c) in the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group sustained the net current liabilities amounted
to HK$70,471,000 as at 31 December 2014. This indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

10/F., Allied Kajima Building,

138 Gloucester Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong,

Tong Yat Hung

Practising Certificate Number P0O1055

30 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReBmkEMEEmTER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+ - A=1+—HILFEF
Note 2014 2013
izt ZFT—0FE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FHEEEEY
Turnover - 5(a) 1,939 -
Other revenue and net income H b e R AERE 5(b) 15,506 -
Administrative and operating ITHREEBERY
expenses (18,075) (7,989)
Loss from operations IR EIE (630) (7,989)
Finance costs BhE R AR 7 (1,139) (1,097)
Share of profits less losses of FEAG B &N B ) B RUE 1B
associate (509) -
Loss before taxation BRELRIEE 8 (2,278) (9,086)
Income tax credit FrigtiE e 10 1,060 -
Loss for the year from REFECEER 2
continuing operations REEEE (1,218) (9,086)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  #RIF4F&s%3x 11
Loss for the year from RERIEEEETR
discontinued operations ZARFEERE (17,378) (13,902)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ER518 (18,596) (22,988)
Other comprehensive loss: Hih2mEE
ltems that may be reclassified HigngEsoEsEnr
subsequently to profit or loss: IHH :
Exchange difference arising on REBINEBFIEE 2
translation of foreign operations b 5 =% (1,980) (71)
Other comprehensive loss for the AEEHMEHEEIER
year, net of tax (fMBRFEIE) (1,980) (71)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS & fE2HEEEEE
FOR THE YEAR (20,576) (23,059)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THANLREILESIE -
— owners of the Company —ARRQREB A 12 (11,299) (13,594)
— non-controlling interests — IR ER (7,297) (9,394)
(18,596) (22,988)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reBnmkEMmEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

Note 2014 2013
izt ZFT—0FE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIANTREEZEEE
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 4l
— owners of the Company S NEIE Z =N (13,479) (13,680)
- non-controlling interests —IEd A R (7,097) (9,379)
(20,576)  (23,059)
HK Cents HK Cents
311 Rl
(Loss)/earnings per share: Bk(E8E),/&BF - 14
From continuing and discontinued K B#FEL LK R
operations BB TS
Basic and diluted ERR#E (0.75) (0.92)
From continuing operations RERFELEED
Basic and diluted ERREE 0.10 (0.53)
From discontinued operations KA HETS
Basic and diluted ERREE (0.85) (0.39)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BEF 2 M BN AR A B SR 2 — &b -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira MR

As at 31 December 2014
RZ-F—MFEF—[=+—H

qu 2014 2013
Nz —EB-—mE —T—=
HK$000  HK$'000
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WENEE 15 653 366
Intangible assets B EE 16 50,877 1,014
Goodwill RS 17 198,681 -
Interests in associate A RNl - 2y 19 5,561 -
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 20 71,682 -
327,454 1,380
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e BR K 21 155,696 20,281
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEED 22 20,316 50,175
176,012 70,456
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMBERERER 23 246,466 38,235
Tax payable FEF 1R 17 1,275
246,483 39,510
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ #%E(&fE) SEFE
ASSETS (70,471) 30,946
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBARE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 256,983 32,326
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERE
Contingent consideration payable [EfF AR (E 24 109,825 -
Amount due to a director EN—RBEZIE 29 5,429 5,537
Amount due to substantial N EEREFHKE
shareholder 29 26,245 25,106
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFIBEE 25 12,719 254
154,218 30,897
NET ASSETS BERHE 102,765 1,429
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ﬂ@$&ﬁﬂﬁ
Share capital N 26 176,183 148,552
Reserves 1}%{% 27 (75,157) (130,754)
Equity attributable to owners of ZKA Tl B A B
the Company 101,026 17,798
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = 1,739 (16,369)
TOTAL EQUITY BER 102,765 1,429
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these Bt Z i BRAALGR A B FERE 2 — 85 -
consolidated financial statements.
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of HR-ZE—HAF=-A=-t+HE==et ALK
Directors on 30 March 2015. HEF)EE o
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue i BB g
Director Director EE BE

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B 5 A0 2

As at 31 December 2014
R-E—mF+=A=+—H

Note 2014 2013
MIFE —E-UE —=E=—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries P EB AR Z RS 18 268,807 88,659
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N E M ERRRR 21 53 -
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERBR 23 794 2,604
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANl PNGIE ] 18 1,956 704
2,750 3,308
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEFE (2,697) (3,308)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEERREBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 266,110 85,351
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Contingent consideration payable  fEffsk SR (E 24 109,825 -
Amount due to a director JERN—REERA 46 46
Amount due to substantial B EEREKE
shareholder 26,264 25,125
136,135 25,171
NET ASSETS BEFHE 129,975 60,180
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR E
Share capital % 2% 26 176,183 148,552
Reserves ] 27 (46,208) (88,372)
TOTAL EQUITY EER 129,975 60,180

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 30 March 2015.

Qiu Yue
Director

Xie Xuan
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o b Rk

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHENEE
Issued Non-
share Share Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total

ERfhd  RWER A%E6E ERGR  RER Nt FEkER it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'00
TR  TEL  TET  TEnL TR TEL  TET TR

Asat 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-f-H 138,562 182,721 26,020 (1,321)  (390,916) (44,944) 6,858 (38,086)
Loss for the year AEERE - - - - (13594 (18504 (9,304 (22.989)
Exchange difference arising RERNERAEL,

on translation of foreign EiZE

operations - - - (66) - (86) 15 (71)
Total comprehensive loss AERREERER

for the year - - - 8 (13594 (1368 (9379 (23,059

Non-controling interests arising on disposal HERNBATZ
of interest in a subsidiary (Note 34(c) BREL I RER (W

34(c)) - - - - 13,848 13,848 (13,848) -
Issue of shares upon placing REEETRN 10,000 55,000 - - - 65000 - 85000
Placing expenses REEY - (2,426) - - - (2,426) - (2,426)
10,000 52,574 - - 13,848 76,422 (13,848) 62,574

As at 31 December 2013 K%z
+ZA=t-8 148,552 235,295 26,020 (1,407)  (390,662) 17,798 (16,369) 1,429

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR e Em BB R

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—MF+—HA=1+—HILFEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHENEE
Issued Non-
share Share Capital Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve losses  Sub-total interests Total

ERfhd  RWER A%E6E ERGR  RER Nt FEkER it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'00

TEL  TER  TER  TER  TEm  TERr  TET  TER

Asat 1 January 2014 R-F-mE-F-R 148552 2%6.295 26020  (1407) (00662 17798 (16369 1429
Loss for the year AEERE - - - - (11299 (11209 (7,297  (18,596)
Exchange difference arising RERNERAEL,

on translation of foreign EiZE

operations - - - (2,180) - (2,180) 200 (1,980)
Total comprehensive loss AERREERER

for the year - - S RI8) (11299 (13479 (097) (20576

Non-controling interests arising from RUMBAREE AR ER

formation of subsidiary - - - - - - 450 450
Non-controling interests arising on WERKBLAZ
acquisition of interests in subsidiaries ERELZHERES - - - - - - 24,755 24,755
Issue of shares on acquisition of interests  WERMBAR ZEFBETRA
in subsidiaries 27,631 69,076 - - - 96,707 - 96,707
27,631 69,076 - - - 96,707 25,205 121,912
As at 31 December 2014 R-E-nE

+2A=t-8

176,183 304,371 26,020 (3,587) (401,961 101,026 1,789 102,765

The accompanying notes form a
consolidated financial statements.

n integral part of these  BEMt 2T ER A Mm% .2 — M o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN Ay =~ —1
meRemnER
For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

Note 2014 2013
et —¥—HE —T—=
HK’000 HK’000
THERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM HEXBELEZHSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BRTEATE 1B (19,910) (28,949)
Adjustments for: RATEIEFE
Share of profits less losses of SEEEE N TR TR E B
associate 509 -
Fair value changes on contingent s SR FE (1R (B A (B &
consideration payable (15,227) -
Interest income FEMBA (24) -
Distribution from KEIIELMEEZ DK
unlisted investments (201) -
Interest expenses FMEXZH 1,139 1,097
Depreciation of property, ME - BENMEKBZINE
plant and equipment 105 118
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & # 54 5,254 10,841
Property, plant and equipment Y% -~ = XL e
written off 104 -
Impairment of other receivables — Hth fE UL BR ZR (E — 169
Impairment of intangible assets B EERE - 13,005
Operation loss before BEESEHH L EEIE
changes in working capital (28,251) (3,719)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and & 5 K& E {th FEUL BR3¢
other receivables B, (3G n) 13,121 (4,617)
Decrease in trade and B 5 K E A E A BR ORI
other payables (9,263) (1,814)
Cash used in operations KEEBAR S (24,393) (10,150)
Tax refunded BRI - 26
Net cash used in operating activities #& & ¥ TR 2R & F 58 (24,393) (10,124)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\/\fﬁi /ﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

Note 2014 2013
B5E —E—MFE —ZT—=4F
HK’000 HK’000
THERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM BREFEBZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received BUF B 24 -
Distribution received from unlisted UgEVIE FHIRE 7 DIk
investments 201 -
Purchase of property, WEWE  BE
plant and equipment B (237) (124)
Acquisition of associate Ui B s 2 N T (3,370) -
Advances to associate BEASYNGIEAEN (2,700) -
Net cash inflow on acquisition of UK E A Ak~
interests in subsidiaries (Note 33) IR % 7 B %58 (M1 7£33) 724 -
Net cash used in investing activities & EEFTA 2R & R F5E (5,358) (124)
CASH FLOWS FROM MEEESZRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment to a director BEEEHE (108) (753)
Advances/(repayment to) from TERFERRERTFEE
substantial shareholder A% ) 1,139 (276)
Interest paid B (1,139) (1,097)
Placing expense ERXZ - (2,426)
Proceeds from placing of shares ~ BC&EAR D 2 FTSFIE = 65,000
Net cash (used in)/generated from L& EE)(FTA)EEY
financing activities REFHE (108) 60,448
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE H4&RIRSZEY
IN CASH AND (RY), W niFeE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (29,859) 50,200
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REZIRERIASZEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 50,175 46
Effects of foreign exchange rate  HMNEFE K& F 2 £
changes — (71)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS iR 2ZHE RIS ZEY
AT END OF THE YEAR 22 20,316 50,175

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

BER 2 BN AR A B sk 2 — &b -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

1.

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company. All values are rounded to nearest thousand
unless otherwise stated.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are investment
holdings, private securities investment, private equity
investment and venture capital investment, provision
of online content information and related technical
services, business consultation services, internet
broadband business management and internet
protocol television services, and private investment
fund management services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) Amendments

Investment Entities

HKAS 32 Amendments Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKAS 36 Amendments Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

HKAS 39 Amendments Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

The adoption of the above new and revised HKFRSs
has no material impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these consolidated financial statements:

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRSs
Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments

HKFRS 11
Amendments

HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 14
HKFRS 15

HKAS 1
Amendments
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38
Amendments
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41
Amendments
HKAS 19 (2011)
Amendments

HKAS 27
Amendments

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

Financial Instruments*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Disclosure Initiative?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2016

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2017

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2.

=)
Are B

%k M 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in
2010 to include the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition and further amended in 2013 to include
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to
the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive
income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortised cost at the end of the subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at FVTPL is presented
in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that quality for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant
impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a
detailed review.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of other new and revised HKFRSs, certain
of which may be relevant to the Group’s operations
and may give rise to changes in accounting policies,
changes in disclosures and remeasurement of certain
items in the consolidated financial statements. The
Group is not yet to assess their impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

B3 8] R AT AE LT B S BT 8o
I(T &R A ) ()

A EREERBBBESZEATEIK
[EBBEaRRAFEIRDNIUBAE
M BEEMBHREERNEIRBATE -
BBaEREEERREHSIROQT
BEEPHENEMEEBRZ2S] - BRIE
REMEERGEERZAENEERR
HE YR ENNBEARENETHER
AltERI - M REREEERRE

MaBNAFEEHEERTIGERIR
=8 - RIEFBGEIERIE395 - 35
ERBEBBRREATEIRNTHAR
MAFEZSH BN EBRLS -

FE
*

i smm

— sk
B =

il

M EENREMS H BFBSE
AIFEORBTREELEEHERN
AEER  BAMBRE LRI
EREREEHEBERAFE - AHER
EEEAFTEERN S HE B S EN
EEBEBNMZEFEEBENAEREH A
Bk - RBREE AR B 9110 FER AR E
B -MmEr  BABHKELEEESEN
BIRIHERE BB A

—REPFT SRR ERE =AY
HEEDE - A ERFTEEMEER
BN SEES|I AERNERE - il
EEEAEEP TANT AR NS
P EETRRIERIEE AVA B AR R AR
BoMER o toh - B MAFEH BN
RS2 R A [EERR (R J R AEK o S
Mk E TR HBEE PR - EFRIF5
&ﬁ@%%ﬁ%@k e IR R KR
E o

ARREEEAFAREBEERBRS
EREORAIEEHARE M BEE
B AERMRECEBBRERY
& o A - EAKB TR AHAERMNA
BB BB RE ERE W PFTIEK
FERMHEEMAE -

AREBCRBFEEMIE RGBT E
BYBREENZTZE  HPETXE
EASEEGEEAR AEEHREE
SEEE  BERERBENIESRSY
BmEkP 2 AMIAR » ARE ARG
g%%ﬁﬁ%@%%&ﬁﬁ%#iﬂ%%Z%

SMEEGER)BRAT

49



50

Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(“GEM Listing Rules”) and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value.

Going concern

The Group had incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$11,299,000 during the year ended 31
December 2014 and net current liabilities
of approximately HK$70,471,000 as at
31 December 2014. The directors of the
Company endeavor to improve the Group’s
liquidity position and have taken measures to
reduce overheads and costs to strengthen its
cash flow position. Furthermore, the directors
of the Company are currently exploring various
options in order to provide additional equity
funding to the Group. In addition, the substantial
shareholder has agreed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group to meet its
liabilities as they fall due.

In view of the above, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will be able
to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis.
Should the Group be unable to operate as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to
give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting
rights relative to the size and dispersion of
holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances
that indicate that the Group has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE—
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and
assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively; and

° liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are
classified as held for sale in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations”
are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the
Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise
from additional information obtained during the
‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
or HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when
the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain
or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree
prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business
combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which accounting is incomplete.
Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at the date.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting
policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the profit or loss on
disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described below.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Appropriate
adjustments are made to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the
Group. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate,
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes as associate. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interest in an associate (Cont’d)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(h)

Interest in an associate (Cont’d)

The Group continues to use the equity method
when an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture or an investment
in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest
in an associate but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that reduction
in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to write off their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

20%-33% or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

19%-50%

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and

fixtures

Computer and 19%-33%
equipment

Motor vehicles . 33%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Research and development costs
Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Other
development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is

incurred.

(ii) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of exclusive right of usage
of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program
On Web Permit is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost
of it over its estimated useful life of eight
years. Customer relationships acquired in
a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Customer relationships have a finite useful
life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to write off
the cost over the contractual periods.

Period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

)

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)

(ii) Acquired intangible assets (Cont’d)
An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use. Gains
and losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any).

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FE—MFF-HA=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(k)

U]

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Cont’d)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: “loans
and receivables” and “available-for-sale”
(“AFS”) investments. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including
amounts due from subsidiaries and
associate, trade and other receivables, and
cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment, except where
the receivables are interest-free loans
without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-
term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

U]

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

AFS Investments

AFS investments are non-derivatives that
are either designated as available-for-sale
investments or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments or (c) financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Equity and debt securities held by
the Group that are classified as AFS
investments and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of AFS investments
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or.

° a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its
cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

U]

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset,
such as trade receivables, are assessed
for impairment on a collective basis
even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass
the credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the amount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss.

When an AFS investment is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period.

In respect of AFS equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised
in profit or loss are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by
the Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

3.

BEXETBR(E
() H¥EIEE)
(i) HMBEERRE

AREBERTZEHRRAT
ANRBEO L ZEE R
MHBAERRATAZER
Mo MR A ESiEn

MHERE
MBRERSBRREAYE
AFABRmzMBEREREM
MBaE -

BATFEH ARSI A
%
BAREEEIR Y SRR
B R A TEE AB®Y
M EERAEARATE
AR -

ENIBER T BABRD

BERRIFEE -

o IFERNEHAEREIM
BENTHBAE - X

o RYSWRE  BRE
EEAHERZEHT
BT REE—EH -
BT EE R
AR

e BRRWIIBEZIETL
A WA BRIEAE
TEH-



ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”
permits the entire combined contract
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising
on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

U]

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade
and other payables, and amounts due to
subsidiaries, a director and substantial
shareholder) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting
would not be material, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
are classified separately as financial
liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the
prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost
basis using the effective interest method
until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount
of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in
equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will
remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to share premium. Where the conversion
option remains unexercised at the maturity
date of the convertible notes, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred
to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are recognised directly
in equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own
equity instruments is recognised and
deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the
transferred assets, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in
profit or loss.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
() Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset other
than in its entirety, the Group allocates the
previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues
to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short-
term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, and
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
services provided in the course of the ordinary
activities, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follow:

()  Income from the provision of project
consultancy services, internet solution
services and content services is
recognised in accordance with the terms
of the underlying contracts and when the
underlying services are rendered;

(i)  Income from the provision of internet
broadband business management and
internet protocol television services is
recognised in accordance with the terms of
the underlying subscription agreement and
when the underlying services are rendered;

(i) Management and consultancy fee are
recognised whenever the services are
rendered;

(iv) Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets; and

(v)  Distribution from investment is recognised

when the right to receive payment is
established.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the People Republic of China (“PRC”)
are members of central pension schemes
operated by the local governments in
the PRC and these subsidiaries make
mandatory contributions to these central
pension schemes to fund the employees’
retirement benefits. The retirement
contributions paid by the PRC subsidiaries
are based on certain percentages of the
employees’ salaries in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC, and
are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
The Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits upon payment of
the retirement contributions to the central
pension schemes operated by the local
governments in the PRC.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefits scheme (“the MPF Scheme”),
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(iii) Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted
to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
included in profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at the end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current tax and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current tax and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. When
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.

Contingent liabilities

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured with sufficient reliably. Possible
obligations that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as a contingent
liability unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FE—MFF-HA=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

®)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the entity’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary item.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve as a
separate component of equity. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(®)

(u)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

In addition, in relation to partial disposal of a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation
that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share
of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of

the Group;

or
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FE—MFF-HA=1—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(u) Related parties (Cont’d)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if

(Vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are the
members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a
member);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person is identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of the
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(v)

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of
the Group’s business, the operations and cash
flows of which can be clearly distinguished from
the rest of the Group and which represents
major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or
is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to
resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if early. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

3.

M

(w)

iR e IS IRR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE_FE—mFEf - H=1—HIFE

EtER(E)
ﬁ}*uiﬁfg
LEDBREARBRRAZHR
ESWEASE  DREFSEE
BT AEESEES R EH R
SHEERRMEHEE FAEES
BEERAR BB ENTEE -

HUBHREMS - ERIEELED
BIGEEE®W MRS A
BREUCOES AR E SRR
ME - AEREFME  BPER
R D EEmIIEEREFERA
ZHAREERFEEE T EBAL
MBI MEWIEBEE 2 EEBENY
HEHEE DR - BIRTAR
DEE#E

BRILEEETR
BIEREEBAEREBEK 2 —&B
H%@&EEEEMLETEEZK% =

E@%ﬁ%% - BRE TR
ExSREn Zﬁ¢£§¥ﬁ

FERHE-BEEBHMEREI D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management has
made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Valuation of intangible assets and useful-life
The Group has made estimations and
assumptions in relation to the potential future
cash flows of identifiable intangible assets
acquired as part of business combinations.
This assessment involves estimations and
assumptions relating to potential future
revenues, appropriate discount rates and the
useful life of such asset. These estimations and
assumptions impact the profit or loss over the
useful life of the intangible asset.

Impairment test of intangible assets
Determining whether intangible assets are
impaired requires an estimation of the value in
use of the cash-generating units. The value in
use calculation requires management to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation in
the year when the estimate is changed and the
future period.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

T THAER Z EE KR
ANEEEAGHBER(RMHES) &
BEEEEHA T HREA BRI
RzEBABEAYEZ Y -

(a)

(b)

(c)

BN EEGERTEAFENR
AEECEREBAH—EO P
Weig 2 AT R | B B 2 TR AR OR
ReRmEFELATRRR - AR
FH M BEAR R W - BERLR
ERBBEEZAIERFHRELMG
R - ZF A RBRRYET
BE A A F B PTREHIRE 8
SBRENTE -

A RN
BT A ERTRER B R
SRR EREE - HER
BERREREIANARSE
R 2 ARASREARS
Mt HRE B MR -

¥ BERRBZINE

ME -~ BB RRBEEERGER
HREERFRAEGRANEMGRAE
RERRFTE - BEEAERFHR
FpEESIREEE (G - A%
EEFEFEYE  BERREBZF
MREEIAEAFE - MEMED
ZTEHIR R e 2 Et B TR - Al
SERAEHGEITLRESH I FE
BRARPEZ FrEBKRTE -



ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(d)

(e)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires management to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2014 was HK$198,681,000
(2013: Nil). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are set out in note 17.

Fair value measurement and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In
estimating the fair value of a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation. The management of the
Group works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments. Note 31(c)
provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various
liabilities.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

4. fHEFFBAAEARZEERIE

(d)

(e)

BERE
ErRERGERAERF2MET
ZEBEDO MRS EEELME
REE FEEREERREEERE
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N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

5. REVENUE 5. U
Continuing operations PHEEEER
(@) An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is (@) AEBEFRNEEBESFOT :
as follows:
2014 2013
—T-mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Management and consultancy fee EENMEMER 1,939 -
1,939 -

(b)  An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net
income for the year is as follows:

(o) ANEEFAREMKZERBAFESY
MranT

2014 2013

—T-lFE —ZT—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FHT

Other income Has 54 -

Distribution from unlisted investments #3E MR E DK 201 -

Interest income FlEMA 24 -
Fair value changes on contingent SARERNREATEE

consideration payable 15,227 -

15,506 -

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is based
on the type of services rendered by the Group’s
operating division for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

The Group has one reporting segment, private
investment fund management and consultancy
services as two business segments have been
discontinued in current year and details of which
are described in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s turnover from
continuing operation from external customers by
location of operations is the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and the turnover from the largest
customer is HK$1,500,000 (2013: Nil). Non-current
assets of HK$250,099,000 (2013: HK$4,000) and
HK$5,653,000 (2013: HK$113,000) are located in
PRC and Hong Kong respectively.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BT R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. BIERE
Continuing operations HIECEER
2014 2013
—T-mE —ZT—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHT
Other interest (not wholly repayable Ha M S (BERAFEA
within 5 years) BEEE) 1,139 1,097
1,139 1,097

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss before taxation from continuing

operations is arrived at after charging:

8. FRESXBZRBAIBE

AEERAFELEXEBH 2R AER

THEH0kR THIB ARG -

2014 2013
—FT-lmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIMRA(TBIEESHMH)
remuneration)
— wages, salaries and other benefits —I& -« #e MEMMEF] 1,832 1,093
— retirement benefits scheme —RRREANET B R
contributions 211 147
Auditor’s remuneration Z AT N 5 650 580
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 4,240 -
Depreciation of property, YW BEMKEZITE
plant and equipment 43 26
Operating lease rentals in respect of T RIEF 2 KEHOAE
land and buildings 396 278
Legal and professional fees FRERBEEER 3,954 1,108

SMEEGER)BRAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= AR

AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
B2 —F—F+ - A=1+—HILFEF

9.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENRESFHIN
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEHEN
The details of emoluments of each director are EEENEHBOT
shown below:
Year ended 31 December 2014 FoFE—E+—H=+—HI
FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees  #i® - 2R BHER Total
Name of director Espz e REGHZ PRI “st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: BITEE:
Xie Xuan B 540 - - 540
Xiao Jing SR 120 - - 120
Chu Yat Hong x— 120 - - 120
Qiu Yue [ifo] - - - -
Feng Ke B 504 - - 504
Non-executive director: FHITEE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond E 57
(Note) (BzE) 10 - - 10
Independent non- BikpiTEs:
executive directors:
Wu Jixue g A= 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong EREES 48 - - 48
Zheng Hong Liang LTS 18 - - 18
1,390 - - 1,390
Note:  Retired on 23 May 2014 s R-ZE—WFRA-+=HE

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)

(a)

Year ended 31 December 2013

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

9. EEREEHME)
(a) ESFHM=E)

BE-F-—=F+-HA=+—HI

FE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees  #& - 28 RIKREF Total
Name of director EEHA we  REMAZE REIS S @&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET THT TR
Executive directors: BITES
Xie Xuan e 540 - - 540
Xiao Jing B g 120 - - 120
Chu Yat Hong K 120 - - 120
Qiu Yue i - - - -
Feng Ke B 72 - - 72
Non-executive director: FFHITEE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond B8R 24 - - 24
Independent non- BukpiTES:
executive directors:
Wu Jixue TEe 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong EREES 48 - - 48
Feng Ke BE 12 - - 12
Zheng Hong Liang B 6 - - 6
972 - - 972

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

FA BECALZHREESTHEXF
ERECAHFH (T —=F:8)-

SMEEGER)BRAT
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AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—FE—MFF-HA=1—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENRESHFHINZ)

REMUNERATION (Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid employees (b)
The five highest paid employees during the
year included two (2013: two) directors whose
remuneration is set out in directors’ remuneration
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2013: three) non-director
employees are as follows:

AisEHES

FR - AfuskEHEE T BEMA
—E-EHF MES ﬁrﬁdﬂ
FHN EX(EFHH—81 - K
B (ZF—=F: =Z()FEF
BEZFHMFELT :

2014 2013
—®-mE —T=%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT T

Salaries, allowances and e RN EMA TR
other benefits 941 653
Retirement benefits scheme RORRRFFT IR
contributions 25 24
966 677

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZHMENFIATHRE :

2014 2013
—T-mE —ZT—-
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 3 3

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (RELATING TO

ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) %

(a)

Income tax credit in the consolidated (a)
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents:

10. EHiff

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

BESEDGABMZAEBE

RiGEEERAMEEKERZEHR
"HRERS -

2014 2013
—EF-UE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TR

Current tax — PRC Enterprise BUEARE T — R B (b2

Income Tax Frisit

Charge for the year REEMRZ = -
Current tax — Hong Kong BIHARS T — &8

Profits Tax FAGHR

Charge for the year REEMRAZ = -
Deferred tax IRAEFL IR (1,060) -
Income tax credit Frigiii s (1,060) -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as
the Group had no assessable profits for the year
(2013: Nil).

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has not been
provided (2013: Nil). Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

PR DA AN [ AN 6% [ 3F 8 U R AR AR
A B I LA B M S A
BT —=F:8)-

WELTEERMAERERE(=
T—ZF ) KEEMBRIARE
B2 HIRR B R RLA R 2 BT

7 =1 4
KEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-F—MFE+—A=+—HLFE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (RELATING TO 10. i EEEXBEEHEZREHIK

CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (Cont’d) 7 (&

(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit (b) PFIBHRGREGSEEREM2E
and accounting loss per the consolidated WERAERERABRETE 2SR
statement of profit or loss and other BiEZEERIOT -
comprehensive income at applicable tax
rates is as follows:

2014 2013
—ET-UE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Loss before taxation from continuing B F/ERK LK ERM 2
operations BRELRTEE (2,278) (9,086)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, %R R E#ER ~
calculated at the rates applicable smA Ee 2z AR
to profit/loss in the jurisdictions TR RTE BT E 2
concerned HEBIE (387) (1,710)
Income not subject to tax BEREHB 2 WA (427) -
Expenses not deductible for tax TEe 2 M
purpose 814 1,710
Deferred tax on intangible assets | EEZIBELERHIE (1,060) -
Income tax credit for the year FRZABRIER (1,060) -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 24 December 2014, the Group announced that
the management agreement in respect of internet
broadband business management and internet
protocol television (IPTV) services provided by the
Group to Guangdong Zhicheng Weiye Investment
Limited would not be renewed upon its expiration.

In view of keen competitions and high costs, the
Group decided not to continue (i) operations of the
aforesaid business division and (ii) the business
division in relation to content solution and business
consultation services.

The cessation was consistent with the Group’s
strategies to focus its resources in the private
investment fund management and consultancy
business.

The combined results of the discontinued operations
included in the loss for the year are set out below. The
comparative loss and cash flows from discontinued
operations have been re-presented to include those
operations classified as discontinued in the current
year.

11.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

R-ZE—WF+-_A-+WHE  A&E
Eff ERAAEBERAEREHNERKRE
BRAFRKEMEREXEFEERE
GRERRE cEEHBENERETS
BE-

ERBRFRURKEAS S  AEERE
THEERE () B o a0 R(i)ERN
AMEMATRERREBBRARBER 2
EBDEL o

RIEELENNAAKEZ R - AIKTF
BHERRILAREESEERGEHE
% o

AAFABRZRUEEERBAHES
FIEINT » BB RR IR EEBE
EZBReRECEHZY - Ut RRA
FEDBREIEBEZERT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont'd) 11, RIEEEER(E)

Loss for the year from discontinued operations 48 || A A e S 1 (A
2014 2013
—E—lmE —Z—=%F
HK$000  HK$'000
FERT FET
Turnover L 124,456 153,756
Cost of services BR 75 AKX AN (122,423) (148,148)
Gross profit EF 2,033 5,608
Other revenue and net income E ez R A EEE 7 -
Administrative and operating expense  {TE R & BRI X (19,672) (25,471)
Loss before taxation Bf%ﬁﬁw B (17,632) (19,863)
Income tax credit FriSfiiK & 254 5,961

Loss for the year from discontinued I EEBEE 2 FAEIE

operations (17,378) (13,902)

Loss before taxation from discontinued operations is MITCEEBRELEZBRBEAIEEE
arrived at after charging: B
2014 2013
—FT-pmE —=—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIMRA(TBIEESHMH)
remuneration)
- wages, salaries and other benefits —Ié e &,Hﬂﬂﬁﬂ 57 702
— retirement benefits scheme RIRTEHFHEI LK
contributions 32 111
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEM N & 34 28
Depreciation of property, plant and mME  BMEREREIFE
equipment 62 92
Amortisation of intangible assets A & 5 1,014 10,841
Impairment of other receivable H i pE W AR Sk 2 R E - 169
Impairment of intangible assets BEEZRE - 13,005
Legal and professional fees FENEXER 2 -
Business development fee X% ERER 5,076 -
Provision for guarantee income REBEUW AR 6,011 -
Cash flows from discontinued operations RIFEEBEECReRE
2014 2013
—B-E —T—=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Net cash outflows from operating REEXBEEZREMEFR
activities (25) -
Net cash inflows from investing activities & & &8 2 HH & RmA 380 105
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from MEEEZFIRE
financing activities D, RA (8,675) 12,697
Net cash (outflows)/inflows FREORE),/MA (8,320) 12,802

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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13.

14.

ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
includes a loss of approximately HK$26,912,000
(2013: HK$4,005,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: Nil).

12.

13.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

KATHR ANEIEEHE

(2 —NF+_-_/A=+—BItHF
B ARREEAREREBERE
E184926,912,0008 (- B — =4 :
4,005,000 70) B 5| AR B2 B 75 4R
&N o

350
EETR#MEBEE_T—MOE+_-A
S+t BALEFEREAMNRE(ZS
—=F )

LOSS PER SHARE 14. BREBE
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a) SEREX(EBE) 27
From continuing and discontinued FEREEERCRIEETR
operations
The calculations of the basic loss per share are BRRERNEIB TR E A NEUSETT
based on the following data: HE
2014 2013
—EF—QnE =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss for the year REEEE (11,299) (13,594)
2014 2013
k=2l 1B 3 =
Weighted average number of i@ nEEHEE
ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares n—H—H
at 1 January EETERR 1,485,518,897 1,385,518,897

Effect of issue of shares on
acquisition of interests in
subsidiaries

Effect of placing (4=l

1=
=

BAWERHE AR Z
RmBEITRGN 2

I

25,738,155 -
= 92,328,767

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

R+ZRA=+t—RHz
ERNE I E A

1,511,257,052 1,477,847,664

SMEEGER)BRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE-F—MFE+—A=+—HLFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Cont’d) (a)

From continuing operations

The calculations of basis earnings/(loss) per

share are based on the following data:

14. SkEE(EZ)
EESECSES

BB HE -

BREF(EBR) B (E)

SRERRF,(FE)TIREAT

2014 2013
—T-E —ZT—=-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT AT
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing @B L EBES 2
operations FREF (E58) 1,586 (7,866)
The denominators used are the same FTRH &HEE |3
as those detailed above FHiE AR R
From discontinued operations FERRIEEEER

The calculations of basis loss per share are

based on the following data:

FRERNEBEEREBEATSIEFE

2014 2013
—FT-lmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
Loss for the year from discontinued RIFREEBESE
operations ZFREIE (12,885) (5,728)
The denominators used are the same as FTF» &8 F
those detailed above A AR R

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share from continuing
and discontinued operations, from continuing

(b) wiREE(EBE) B

FREEERRITREEB 2 BRE
SEER), /B RFEEEREK

operations, and from discontinued operations IEEE XS ALl GRETR

are same as basic (loss)/earnings per share
detailed above as these were no potential dilutive

shares outstanding.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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ZE NS ER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R P

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

15. Y% - MERRE

Computer
Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvement  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HENERE  GRRRE  ZRRRG RE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET T#ET TET
Cost .
At 1 January 2013 R-2-=F-f-H 12 467 2,751 1 3,401
Additions E 52 25 47 - 124
Writen off s - - (124 26) (150)
Exchange difference EiEE - 1 78 4 83
At 31 December 2013 and RIE-ZE+ZA=1-H
at 1 January 2014 R=E-ME-F-H 64 493 2,752 149 3,458
Additions RE - 192 45 - 287
Acquisition through business BEBARMNE
combination 175 3 82 - 292
Written off i - (260) (2,009) - (2,359)
Exchange difference EizE - 7 (50) @3 (60)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-EE+-A=1-A 239 453 730 146 1,568
Accumulated depreciation and BHITERRERR
impairment losses
At 1 January 2013 RZE-ZF-F-H 12 451 2,407 1 3,041
Charge for the year TEERY 4 2 112 - 118
Wrtten back fs - - (124 26) (150)
Exchange difference EiEH - 1 78 4 83
At 31 December 2013 and RE-=E+-f=1-A
at 1 January 2014 R-%-MmE-A-H 16 454 2,473 149 3,092
Charge for the year TEERY 10 13 82 - 105
Wrtten back s - (049 12,008) - (2,255)
Fxchange difference EXEE - U (17) (3) 27)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-BE+-A=+-H 26 211 532 146 915
Net carrying amount IREEE
At at 31 December 2014 RZE-BETZA=1-H 213 242 198 - 653
Atat 31 December 2013 RZE-=Et_A=1-H 48 39 219 - 366
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Customer
relationships Permit Total
EFR% o st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THET FHER
Cost &
At 1 January 2013, RZE—=F—-H—H"
31 December 2013 and —E-=F+-A=1—H
1 January 2014 k=E-mNE—H—H - 226,668 226,668
Acquisition through business combination £ £ #& 6 Ui 56,009 - 56,009
Exchange difference EHER (892) - (892)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZ-MmFE+-A=+—H 55,117 226,668 281,785
Accumulated amortisation and R RRERE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2013 RZZE—=%—F—H - 201,808 201,808
Amortisation for the year FRE - 10,841 10,841
Impairment for the year FNRE - 13,005 13,005
At 31 December 2013 and RZE—=F+_-A=1+—H
1 January 2014 N—E—-MF—F—H - 225,654 225,654
Amortisation for the year FREHE 4,240 1,014 5,254
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1—H 4,240 226,668 230,908
Net carrying amount FREFE
At 31 December 2014 R-ZZ-MNFE+-A=+—H 50,877 - 50,877
At 31 December 2013 R-Z—=%+-A=+—-H - 1,014 1,014

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

(@)

Customer relationships represent cost incurred to
acquire contractual relationships with customers
through business combination (Note 33).

The Permit represents an exclusive right of
usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program
On Web Permit (2 BB EEREGB A
#&) granted by the holder of the Permit (the
“Holder”) to a subsidiary of the Company under
an exclusive agreement entered into between
that subsidiary of the Company and the Holder.
The Permit commenced on 1 October 2007 and
will expire on 30 September 2015. The fair value
of the Permit on the date of acquisition of that
subsidiary by the Company has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out by
Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group. Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
and has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar assets.

As the directors of the Company decided to
discontinue the operations of internet broadband
business management and IPTV services,
intangible assets have been fully amortised for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The recoverable amount of the Permit for
2013 was determined based on a value in use
calculation. For the purpose of the impairment
test, the recoverable amount of the Permit
was in accordance with valuation prepared by
Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 1 year period and a
pre-tax discount rate of 17.67% with no growth
rate. Other key assumptions for the value in
use calculation related to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales
and gross margin. Such estimates were based
on the past performance by holding the Permit
and management’s expectations for the market
development.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-F—MEf A=+ —ALEE

16. EREE(E)

(@)

EPRBFREEBELA O (ME
B EBMBEFTF ZANBEMMESL
LA

APl RE R (S B AR IR IRAT B AT
AEREATHAEADRELRR
GILI PACIEES S RPN g e
ZEBEERZM B AR 2B
RERAE - FAER _ZTTLF+
A—BR%\  THR=_"F—AFAN
A=1HE® - FFAERARAE
BZMBARE R Z A FERER
SEYEEECBIABRERM
BB EERFEARARETZ
HEMER - ARERFEERA
AREABHEMBEEE - YNFF
HEUEE T HABEEER R

AR AABEFRAER LERER
BEBERREBMAEHE R X
% SEPEENBEZE T —NF
TZA=t—HIFEE2m#H -

T =FZFAEZ A RS
RIBEREEFTEETE  sURER
AME - FFAUE A ERESETIR
BEHBERMEERARRARE
EIRERE MISTREIR SRR
MmRGEERS ML - ZHBE
ERE—FHRE - HBRRATRERX
R/17.67% @ WEERE - FHE
B EZEMMEIRRREGBERS
MA/BREeEREER  EhEER
FHHEREM - G DRIER
BRFAIEZBAERAELREEEHT
SRRTEHET -
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HE—

17.

E-mEF—A=1—HIFE

GOODWILL 17. BE
2014 2013
—FT-lmE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FAET
Cost B 7R
Amount arising from business HEBEHEEZ
combination (Note 33) 258 (FF5E33) 201,897 -
Exchange difference MEHZ% (3,216) -
Net carrying amount AREFE
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 198,681 -

Goodwill arising on acquisition of interests in
subsidiaries is disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following group of cash-generating
unit:

WENB A ARRAMELAZAERER
A B SRR MIFESS -

EERENADEENTENZRE
EEEA

2014 2013
—T-UFE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#ET FHET
Private investment fund management FLAREESEERL
and consultancy services B8 1 AR 75 198,681 -

The recoverable amount of this group of cash-
generating unit is determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by directors of the
Company covering a five-year period, and a discount
rate of 12.75% per annum, (2013: Nil).

The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 2% per annum growth
rate which does not exceed the long term average
growth rate for the market. Any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amount would result in further impairment losses.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ZARI 2R EEBNZ KRBT
*ETTETEFH{E@}&IE - MEBEETEA
T%%ﬁt/ﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁ Zﬁ%mui
BEtE - ZUBEERE L FHM - AL
BRABBFI12.75%(ZF—=F &) -

Eﬁﬁ)%F?Z?&Eﬁfﬁﬁi)wbﬁ¢§%ﬁmiﬁﬁ
REF2%HE - HIBERXTBEETHHN
EE‘H:Fi’Ji‘ET o sTE AN El 2 BT A
ZARRR AN (T AA] I 2 B i E B INR
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18. RMBAB 2

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2014 2013

—T-NFE ~—T—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Investments in unlisted shares, at cost &E&RIEETARD @ HKAK 14,473 14,473
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (14,473) (14,473)
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 417,356 201,927
Less: Impairment losses B REE R (148,549) (113,268)
268,807 88,659

268,807 88,659

Movements in impairment losses on amounts due

JE U B B8 X BRI 2 R BB IR & Ehan

from subsidiaries are as follows: T
2014 2013
—T-UFE —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—A—8 113,268 113,268
Impairment for the year FNRIE 35,281 -
At 31 December WNt+—-_A=+—8 148,549 113,268

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and have no fixed repayment

terms.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 34 to consolidated financial statements

FEYL, FEAT BB A R) 2 FRIA AR

RENREBEEERY -

ARBEBMBRB 2HBHRZEAE M

R M FE34 ©

SMEEGER)BRAT
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HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE

19. REFEAB 2R

2014 2013
—T-E —ZT—=-F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
F#ET FAET
Unlisted investment JEETIRE

Share of net assets DIEEEFE 2,861 -
Amount due from associate /NI E S 2,700 -
5,561 -
Amount due from associate is unsecured, non-interest JEUW B S N RIRIBEAEER £ 8 A

bearing and has no fixed repayment terms mETEN -

Particulars of the associate are set out in note 35 to BENRFBHNEE YV BREM T

the consolidated financial statements

Aggregate information of associate that is not

individually material:

35 °

BRI NEARBERRNA

AR

2014 2013
—T-NE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHIT
Aggregate carrying amount of A IR R A E RN E AR
individually immaterial associate in Zan REERRE
the consolidated financial statements 5,561 -
Aggregate amounts of the REBED(hZBERRIZE5E
Group’s share of that associate
Loss from continuing operations FECE X 2 BB (509) -
Post-tax loss from discontinued RERIEREERK 2
operations BRIz EE = -
Other comprehensive income HEf 2wz = -
Total comprehensive loss FHEBERE (509) -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. TTHHERSE
2014 2013
—T-E —ZT—=-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHET
Unlisted equity investments FELEMARARE 71,682 -
These unlisted equity investments represent HEIEFTRARERELANEERES 7
investments in private investment funds and are KEWIRKAMBRRE R ZHE
measured at cost less impairment, if any at the end of (E)FTE - BRATFEMNSEGATE
the reporting period because the range of reasonable E+PEK KRAEEFRALNTEE
fair value estimates is so significant that the directors AR SEihET 2 o
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably.
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B RH b FEWARRR
The Group The Company
*&5E AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mOE —T—-F Z¥-mOFE —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FERT FET
Trade receivables B HRYERT 3,509 5,073 - -
Prepayments, deposits and JEfTFIE « 24 Kk
other receivables (Note) Hih EUBE N (B3E) 152,187 15,208 53 -
155,696 20,281 53 -

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers
are determined on a case-by-case basis with
reference to the size of service contracts, recurrent
services provided to sales with the customers and
their credit history. The Group makes provision for
trade receivables based on specific review. Provision
is made against trade receivables after considering
the amount due, creditability of customers and other
qualitative factors.

AEEREPRHEZEREERRDZER
BANEE MRERLPHERHZHE
ERBLEREZEEELIZERBERE
E o ANEERERERE FEUKERN
EHEE AEEEREEIHEHE
EPEEREMEERNRREE SR
BRIE L B -
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the
Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

. BSREMBKARR(EF)

AEBRBERRZE 5 RBIRRZ K
AT

2014 2013

—EB-ME —T=4F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

0 to 30 days 0Z 30K 3,509 5,073
Total trade receivables B HEWERF B 3,509 5,073

The credit period of the Group’s trade receivables
ranges from 60 days to 90 days. For certain
customers with long-estimated relationship and good
past histories, a longer credit period may be granted.

No interest was charged on the trade receivables.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. The management of the Group monitors
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and considers adequate impairment loss has been
recognised for irrecoverable amount, if necessary.
None of the trade receivable is either past due or
impaired.

Note:

Included in the other receivables, a balance of
HK$136,672,000 are managed receivables. Due to the
restructuring of funds, the investors have entrusted the
Company’s subsidiary to manage an amount of the other
receivables (“managed receivables”) and the amount of the
other payables (“managed payables”), in order to utilize the
Company’s services to enhance the recovery process of the
receivables resulting in earlier payout of the payables.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

AEEZEZRBEFZEEHNT TR
B60ZE90H - B THEHSEFRABEK
BAREHZERPME EREEH
S AL -

ZEESRWERTITEE - AEEH
BRZEann e TMERmD - A5H
ZEREEREAEREBER 2 AT
EER IR/ EREERE 2 25
EREHREBER(NFE) - HEES
JE s B R 2 B SORLE ©

B EE -

Hib KR 81E5136,672,0008 L2 &
BREYWRER AREAES  REEZEE
AARAIMBAREIE —EH M EIUER
F(TZEIREWERTR ) & E b FE 1 BR 3R
([REBRMNER]) - AEBIERRARIR
HoE RN R R B R F - B ENER
RZIRFIRAT
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22, MERFLS%LEY

The Group
AEE
2014 2013
—F-mE —=—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHETT

Cash and bank balances B4 NMIRTTEE 20,316 50,175
Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by RITHEREERAEEFEMREEA
the Group with an original maturity of three months or REZMANERERZRITER °
less.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. 5 REMIEFES

The Group The Company

b AT
2014 2013 2014 20183

—F-mE —T=% Z¥T-NE —T-=%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FER FAT

Trade payables B SRR = - - -
Accruals and BRERR
other payables H e BRI 246,466 38,235 794 2,604

246,466 38,235 794 2,604

As mentioned in note 21 to the consolidated financial #1424 B FE R E M 21 il - H b fE (T BE 2k
statements, included in other payables, a balance of H &IE45£2210,158,000/8 T2 X & IEFEN BRE
HK$210,158,000 are managed payables. e

SMEEGER)BRAT
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24, CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 24, HIRFEFC(E
The Group The Company
b3 | AT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F-mE —=—= —F-mE —=—=
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FHT TisR  FER THR
Convertible bonds BRI eSS 109,825 - 109,825 -

Convertible bonds of contingent consideration
payable to be issued is based on the percentage
of profit after tax of the acquired subsidiaries in
each of the years 2015 and 2016 compared to
HK$25,500,000 respectively, therefore the contingent
consideration payable is classified as a financial
liability, measured at fair value through profit or loss
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” issued by HKICPA.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration payable is recognised in
profit or loss of the Group.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable
as at 28 November 2014 and 31 December 2014
is determined by independent qualified professional
valuers, Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited using
Binominal model.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

1 FEIT 2 T RRES 2 A ARFRE
EREAMUBHNBARR-_ZE—RF
RZE-—RNFEF2BBBEN LS
25,500,000 L2 BA LD RIETHE - &
SAENREELASRARE  HIZE
BEEMABEM 2B EREI9
eI HE : BREFAEJHBARAUAR
FEFTABRMTRGE - MKAEN
REMNEEEHRANEEBRER

RZE—NWF+—AZ+ N \BERZF
—FE+Z A=+ —HZXAENSRE
ZAFERBYABEREEGEMNBE
HEENHBEMERARKAZEBENAE
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25. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 25, IREHIEE G
The major deferred tax liabilities recognised and REERBEFECHERZ T ERELER
movements thereon during the current and prior years BEERESFHEMnT

are summarised below:

Intangible
assets
W|REE
HK$’000
FETT
At 1 January 2013 RZE—=F—H—H 6,215
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE (5,961)
At 31 December 2013 and at 1 January 2014 N-E—=%F+-"A=1+—HK
—E—-pF—H—H 254
Amount arising from business E S O E 4 < 258 (M 5E33)
combination (Note 33) 14,002
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZ (1,314)
Exchange difference b5 =5 (223)
As at 31 December 2014 RZZE—HNFE+=-A=+—H 12,719
At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset REER - ARBRFAKAE A 8 A
has not been recognised in respect of the unused BLIR BRI 2 K SR B SR B R 2OR -
tax losses due to the unpredictability stream of future B 45 3 R B PR A TR S R B R IR T R IR
taxable profits that will be available against which the BE °

tax losses can be utilised.

SMEEGER)BRAT
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. Ig&
Number of
shares Amount
kBEE kx|
HK$'000
FAEL
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each):  AERA(SREEC0E T L@R) :
Balance at 1 January 2013, at 31 December RZE-—=F—f—H"
2013 and at 1 January 2014 —E-ZHFTZA=ZT-BHR
—E-NUE-A-HziEH 2,000,000,000 200,000
Increase (Note ) () 8,000,000,000 800,000
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+-F=+—0 2 &#% 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BETRARRA(BREBCI0ETL
HK$0.10 each) EER)
Balance at 1 January 2013 RZE-=%F—-F-Hz#% 1,385,518,897 138,552
Issue of shares upon placing (Note i) L E R BT (3 100,000,000 10,000
Balance at 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=+-0kK
and at 1 January 2014 R-E—NE—A—BHz#&H 1,485,518,897 148,552
Issue of shares (Note iii) TR (D 276,306,666 27,631
Balance at 31 December 2014 WoE-ME+-B=+—Hy&s8 1,761,825,563 176,183

Notes:

GEE

(i) On 29 September 2014, increase in authorised share (i)
capital from HK$200,000,000 to HK$1,000,000,000
by creation of 8,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each was approved by shareholders.

(i) On 28 January 2013, a total of 100,000,000 Placing (if)
Shares were successfully placed by the Placing Agent
to not less than six independent Placees at the Placing

Price of HK$0.65 per Placing Share.

(i)  On 5 December 2014, 276,306,666 Ordinary shares (i)
of HK$0.10 each were issued at HK$0.45 per
Ordinary share as a result of acquisition of interests in

subsidiaries.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

R-ZE—MEAA-FTNA EiBE
#%8,000,000,000 % & % I {E0.107% 7T
2 TR B IR AN F 200,000,000
JCI% % 1,000,000,000/8 ¢ © © AR
HEAE o

RZZE-—Z=ZF—-—AZ+N\B BERK
3 X T Fid & #£100,000,000 % Fid & A T
PLORRNBEILARA  BEERE
fid & %0.65/8 7T °

R-F—ME+-ARA - BRI
2 RS - D RS R % RR0.45
T 2 [B1%E17276,306,666 1% &A% H
{6010/ 2 & i «
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27. RESERVES 27. k&
The Group *EE
Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Riria® ey i ER G ZithR ot

HK§'000 HKS 1000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
TEL TETL TAL TR TAL

At 1 dancary 2013 H-F-=6-f-F 182,721 26,020 132) G091 (183499)
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (13,594) (13504)
Exchange difference arising on RERNFBEL,
translation of foreign operations Eiz8 - - (66) - (66)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERLEEELS - - (66) (13,594) (13,680)
Non-controling interests arising on disposal of HERKEARZEREL 25
interests in a subsiciary (Note 34(c) BRER (33400 - - - 13848 13,848
Issue of shares upon placing RERE% R 55,000 - - - 55,000
Placing expenses RERR (2,426) - - - (2,426)
52,574 - - 13,848 66,422
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F
at 1 January 2014 t-A=+-8R
“E-M5-A-A 235,05 26,020 (1407 (390,667 (130,754
Loss for the year FERER - - - (11,29) (11,.209)
Exchange difference arising on BEENHEEL
translation of foreign operations EREE - - (2,180) - (2,180)
Total comprehensive loss for the year KERRAFREE - - (2,180) (11,299) (13,479)
Issue of shares on acquisition of interests ~~ EUNERHERAAZ
in subsidiaries ERERn 69,076 - - - 69,076
69,076 - - - 69,076
At 31 December 2014 N-%-mE
+2B=+-8 304,371 %020 0567 (401.961) (75,151)

THEE(ER)BRAF 111
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27. RESERVES (Cont’d) 27. B (E)
The Company AT
Share  Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
i EQRS Rt @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THET T AT
At 1 January 2013 N-ZE-—#—f—H 182,721 13,882 (333,544) (136,941)
Loss for the year AFEER - - (4,005) (4,005)
Issue of shares upon placing R EETR D 55,000 - - 55,000
Placing expenses RERAX (2,426) - - (2,426)
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=E+-fF=1+—-H
at 1 January 2014 R=Z-mE—F—H 235,205 13,882 (337,549) (88,372)
Loss for the year KEEER - - (26,912) (26,912)
Issue of shares on acquisition of EKERHBAFZ
interests in subsidiaries BTk 69,076 - - 69,076
At 31 December 2014 R-F-mE+-F=+-H 304,371 13,882 (364,461) (46,208)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the nominal value of the
Ordinary shares issued by the Company and the
net asset value of a subsidiary acquired through
an exchange of shares as at the date of the group

reorganisation.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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27. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus are distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of share premium, capital redemption
reserve and contributed surplus if:

() itis, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would be
thereby less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries
acquired through an exchange of shares as at the date
of the group reorganisation and the waive of loans by
a related party on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3(1).

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserves available for distribution to shareholders
of the Company (2013: Nil).

27.

iR e IS IRR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

i E
RERSHERREMETTA) @ B0
B - EXBERFENMESAEHKAHEDIK
TR - MERTIERT - RABTF
FERIORITIRE - SARMDRE - EX
BORELREFEKEHDIK

() BERIRDREELEE
(e

AHE

iy EHEEEZAUZREEERMEEZER
HeFHEBEITRARZEHE -

AREE 2 ERNFBBIERARADETE
Bz EEENEEEHEE BEBKN
R E P B A B 2 BN R B 4k 1B 42
BUNEBALIR _TETENF_A—
HERER I ZR

EXFEREAARREEINERE M
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28. SHARE OPTIONS
The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Balances and transactions between the Company
and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the
Company, have been eliminated on consolidation and
are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions
between the Group and other related parties are as
follows:

(@@ Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of
approximately HK$5,429,000 (2013:
HK$5,537,000) is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and is not due for repayment within the
next twelve months.

(b)  Amount due to substantial shareholder, Asian
Dynamics International Limited, of approximately
HK$26,245,000 (2013: HK$25,106,000) is
unsecured, interest bearing at the annual rate of
5% and is not due for repayment within the next
twelve months.

Interest paid and payable to the substantial
shareholder for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,139,000 (2013:
HK$1,097,000).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

28. BERRHE

29.

ARABBAIYEANZ B TERE
gl -
EXFAEANLRS

ARREANBRAR(AEARRZHEE
AL ZHEBERHGERGAKEBERT
AMISE - SRR A AR - N&EH
HHEMEEALTZRSHBRENT

ENEZESEHEZRELHN A
5,429,000 8 T (=& — = F :
5,637,000 7T) T EEA - 2 8
MBENRKI2EARNEE -

FE 1 £ 2 & E Asian Dynamics
International Limited 7% T # A&
26,245,000 T (Z & — =4 :
25,106,000 7T ) Jy 1R - 1=
E5%5T B R BFERARKA2ME A A

g -

FAR - BNEENEERRZFE
4)/41,139,0008 T (—E—=4 :
1,097,000/ 7T) °
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

()

On 31 December 2012, the Group entered into
the management agreement (“Management
Agreement”) with Guangdong Zhicheng Weiye
Investment Limited (“Guangdong Zhicheng”),
a company controlled by Mr. Chu Yat Hong
who is a substantial shareholder and a director
of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide management services to
Guangdong Yingxin Xinxi Investment Limited
(“Guangdong Yingxin”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guangdong Zhicheng. Accordingly,
the Management Agreement constitutes
continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and has
been properly disclosed thereunder. The Group
would entitle the operating profit of Guangdong
Yingxin in respect of multimedia and internet
services as service fee. During the year, the
Group charged internet broadband business
management service fee of HK$124,456,000
(2013: HK$153,148,000) to Guangdong
Yingxin and reimbursed Guangdong Yingxin
cost of such services of HK$122,423,000
(2013: HK$148,148,000). The amount of
HK$2,009,000 (2013: HK$5,073,000) was
unsettled at 31 December 2014 and included
in trade receivables. In addition, Guangdong
Yingxin charged business development fee of
HK$5,076,000 (2013: Nil) to the Group during
the year.

Included in prepayment, deposits and other
receivables was an amount of approximately
HK$2,903,000 (2013: HK$2,974,000) due from
Guangdong Yingxin. The amount is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

In 2009, the Group entered into cooperation
agreement with Guangdong Yingxin, a company
controlled by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, to operate and
develop the business of the internet protocol
television services. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group guaranteed Guangdong Yingxin that
its profit sharing would compensate its initial
costs. In this respect, the Group made provision
for guarantee income of HK$4,000,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2012. During the year,
the Group further provided guarantee income of
HK$6,011,000 (2013: Nil).

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

29. EXFAEANLRS(E)

(©
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BEEEXR—MAEZEHNAT)
AVEREGE(IERBZE] &
it AEBRERERAEEN
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MBI FE20EFMAE2IFERE
RS WEBMEHBEEEE - K
SEEEAERBELEELE
BEREEZAEERBENLER
A EBREER - £ AEE
[ & B2 22 (= We B 124,456,0005%8 7T
ZE— =4 : 153,148,000/ 7T)
CEBEEREREERESE -
WHEBRBEBBRSE ZHA
122,423,000 8 L (ZE—=F :
148,148,000/ 70) e R = ZF — Y
F+-A=+—H " 42,009,000
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E(RA—MALEZHZRAR])
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

()

On 10 January 2014, the Group and connected
persons, Mr. Xie Xuan and his spouse, entered
into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Group agreed to purchase 40%
equity interest in Best Concept Limited and 40%
of loan (equivalent to HK$2,700,000) owed by
Best Concept Limited, from Mr. Xie Xuan and his
spouse at consideration of HK$6,070,000. Mr.
Xie Xuan is an Executive director and Chairman
of the Company and a substantial shareholder
of Best Concept Limited. Accordingly, the
transaction constitutes a connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules
and has been properly disclosed thereunder.
Best Concept Limited currently owns two office
property units located in Guangzhou, PRC. Upon
the completion of the transaction, the Group has
the right to use one of the property units as the
office for its operations in Guangzhou free of any
rental charges for such period the Group shall
determine as long as the Group’s shareholding
in Best Concept Limited does not fall below
40%. The transaction was completed on 14
February 2014. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 10 January
2014 and 14 February 2014.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

29. EXFAEANLRS(E)

()
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)
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29. EXFAEANEIXH(E

(@ On 26 May 2014, the Group and a connected (@ RZZT—NFRA=T+B A&
person, Mr. Wang Qiang, entered into the EEFREF(RMEAT)IFIVE
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to Bz Bt - AEERERTA
which the Group agreed to acquire 51% equity SERIE G ERERIEEEER
interest in Shanghai Zero2ipo M&A Fund PR A A] 2 51%R% # f Joint Victory
Management Co. Ltd. and 100% equity interest Inc.Z100% A& #E ([ fEE1E]) -
in Joint Victory Inc. (the “Acquisition”) from KB PR A&255,000,0007% JT (7]
Mr. Wang Qiang at maximum consideration of THE) TREERARNE —MH
HK$255,000,000 subject to adjustment. Mr. BB AR CEENMEE - &
Wang Qiang is a director and shareholder of a R BRI RREEEGRAA
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company X Joint Victory Inc. Z 2% A% R ©
and is a controlling shareholder of Shanghai Eit - RIEAIZR TR BIZE20
Zero2ipo M&A Fund Management Co. Ltd. and EUEE WEEEBREKAAT Y
Joint Victory Inc. Accordingly, the Acquisition E S - WE stk EREE I
constitutes a connected transaction as defined BoWEEEN _ZT-—HNE+—A
in Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules and has Z+HN\HTK - BEZFFEIBEINLE
been properly disclosed thereunder. The AU BEHmARMFISLARD A B H
Acquisition was completed on 28 November ABZE—NFRA=-+RH =T
2014. Further details are set out in note 33 to —OFEANANBRZE—NF+=
the consolidated financial statements and the RABZ RS -

Company’s announcements dated 26 May 2014,
8 September 2014 and 5 December 2014.

(h) The remuneration of directors and other h BSEENETEEEAERFRNZE
members of key management during the year is BN T
as follows:

The Group

XEHE

2014 2013
—EB-lmE —Z—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Short-term benefits R EIE A 1,791 1,356
1,791 1,356

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

REERTEEBABZHM A
FHEZEEREESAZKREALT
GBTRERE -

SMEEGER)BRAT

117



Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

30. COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- HEBERBEXNZ&HEM

30. #*iE

EERERE

R|EHR - AKRERBETAIHHL S

ERRBER

cancellable operating leases as follows: mT
2014 2013
—T-E —ZT—=-F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
Within one year —FNRN 1,062 225
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ -_FEFRE(RIEEEME) - 211
After the fifth year FRFE = 83
1,062 519
The Group’s operating leases are for terms of 2 years. REFZEEHRE AN F2F -
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 31. IR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BAEITEZEEH
The Group
XEE
2014 2013
—T-E —ZT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets R EE
Amount due from associate JE B 2 A B kIR 2,700 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 71,682 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H AU BR K 155,696 20,281
Cash and bank balances B MIRITHER 20,316 50,175
250,394 70,456
Financial liabilities HEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EHMER R 246,466 38,235
Contingent consideration payable FE SR RE 109,825 -
Amount due to a director B —REEFRIE 5,429 5,637
Amount due to substantial R EERERIE
shareholder 26,245 25,106
387,965 68,878

1 18 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

31. MBIR(E)

(a)

MBIRZER (&)

The Company

P /N
2014 2013
—B-lE —Z—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FHETT
Financial assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG 268,807 88,659
268,807 88,659
Financial liabilities IHEEE
Trade and other payables B 5N EMEMERR 794 2,604
Amounts due to subsidiaries S NGRS 1,956 704
Contingent consideration payable FET B AR (B 109,825 -
Amount due to a director BN —REEHIA 46 46
Amount due to substantial JE EERRERFRIB
shareholder 26,264 25,125
138,885 28,479
Financial risk management and policies (b) HMBEMEERERBUER

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, amount due
from associate, trade and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables, contingent consideration payable,
amount due to a director and amount due
to substantial shareholder. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

AEEZTEMHETABBAMHY
ERE  BURBERRFIE B
SR EMEYERR - BE RIRTTE
& BEHREMENERR - B
ARE BNEZEFELRENEIE
BRERFIE - WEMBTAZHIBE
PAAARIP B ER o T XTI 5
BTAZHAERR  SEMEAR
(SNERRR AN XRR) - EERR
KngE g @k - A KRNEDREE
LR R - BEEEEMEY
ZREg - BRERARCETEES
i

SMEEGER)BRAT

119



120

Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31

December 2014

BE_F—MF+_A=1—HIFE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)
(i) Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company’s functional currency is Hong
Kong dollar and the functional currency of
the majority of the subsidiaries is Renminbi.
The Group’s transactions, trade receivables
and trade payables are mainly denominated
in these currencies.

Entities within the Group are exposed
to foreign exchange risk from future
commercial transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s
functional currency. However, as the
net foreign exchange exposure is not
significant, the Group does not actively
hedge this foreign exchange exposure
and no foreign currency risk sensitivity is
disclosed.

The Group periodically reviews monetary
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currency to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level,
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risks

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk
relates primarily to fixed rate borrowings
from substantial shareholder (see note
29). The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk relates primarily to bank balances (see
note 22). The management considers the
Group’s exposure of the bank balances to
interest rate risk is not significant as they
have a short maturity period.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

31. MBIR(E

(b)

MBEREERBUR (&)

() WEERE
SINES R\
ARBZNEEERET

MARDMHERR ZWEEE
BERARE AEEZXR
5 BHERUERE S E
NIRRT EAZEFERHE -

AREBEBETEBBERKER
RGRUIEFNERNGEER
HEZEREERAGBMA
EELRR - A BRI
PE R B R RN ANE KR - AR
SEYETEEIPINER
B - I A 3 R SN R R
RE e

REBETERBE ARG
UINEERBZEERA
18 - WEORJE R T R A R0 AT
BEACEILHRA T EE Y
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AREBEZ AFEMEERE
ZHEREEERRZEEN
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies
(Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties, is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables,
the management has strengthened the
credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the management reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt at each reporting date to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the management considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties
are reputable banks or banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk management

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
Group relies on issuing of shares and
borrowings from related parties as a
significant sources of funding.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

31. BBIR(AE)
(b) BATSEBREE BB (E)

(ii)

(iii)

EEREREE
R-E-—WFE+-_A=1+—
B HEXSHFRERBTT
BEREEMEEHARAEEE
KM BRAZESERER
B REEMBARRERFT N
McERRYBEEZRE
& °

RTEREREERKESES
REMERZEERR &
EECDIREERRE  F8
EHRAEMERERF - BE
SRR E T B E B HR
BER - I EEEES
BEEMNZEZEBNRE
HIRZ A5 - AR
AREEWEZ RIAEH RS2
HEREERE - BtmE
EREEEEAR/AKEZE
R E AR o

nBEEZEERBRER
RN ZHFIERE
BEREEFREBLET ST
A B BB ZIRIT

RBE2EGEE
AEBERRDE AR
B 2ERBESMASEE
WM2KF - BERFEEER
EBRRBEBZKE AR
RRRZEEHRT MR
TRKBZEE o BITRMD
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

31. MBIR(E)

(b) Financial risk management and policies (b) HAEEMEERBE(EZ)
(Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d) (iii) FEELEGEE(E)
The following tables detail the Group’s TERFAVWREB R KANFZ
and the Company’s remaining contractual i aE s TA4YE 15
maturity for their financial liabilities which o HERAKER K AN T
are based on the undiscounted cash flows AWEREFEEREM
of financial liabilities and the earliest date on HEVEKaERIIBERS
which the Group and the Company can be o
required to pay.
The Group AEE
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than hut less undiscounted Total
Imonths  thaniyear  Morethan  cash flows carrying
BEXd  Z@ANE 1 year KB amount
DRSER  EOR-E  BR-F  REREE  RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
2014 ~§-0f TR TAL TR Tin TEn
Trade and other payables BARAMENER 246,466 - - 6466 246,466
Contingent consideration payable ENSARE - - 124,338 124,338 109,825
Amount due to a director EN-4E23E - - 5,429 5,429 5,429
Amount due to substantial shareholder ENTERETE - - 26,245 26,245 26,245
246,466 - 156,012 402,478 387,965
213 i
Trade and ofher payables EAREMENES 38,235 - - 38,285 38,285
Amount due to a director El-%83543 - - 5,537 5,537 5,537
Amount due to substantial shareholder BT EREZAE - - 25,106 25,106 25,106
38,235 - 30,643 68,878 08,878

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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31. MBIR(E)

(b) Financial risk management and policies

(Cont’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

(b) MBEBEERRBR(E)

(iii) HEELREEEE (&)

The Company AAT
More than
Ondemand 3 months Total
or less than but less undiscounted Total
Imonths  than1year ~ Morethan  cash flows carrying
BERS  ZERNL 1 year KR amount
DiR3ER  BOR-£ Big-£ ReRes FEAE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2014 —§-0f Fén i TEr T Thr
Trade and other payables BARAMENER 794 - - 794 794
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBLARTE 1,956 - - 1,956 1,956
Contingent consideration payable ENIARE - - 124,338 124,338 109,825
Amount due to a director E-2E238 - - 46 46 46
Amount due to substantial shareholder ERTEREE - - 26,264 26,264 26,264
2750 - 1068 193308 138,865
2013 E-CF

Trade and other payables ESRERERER 2,604 - - 2,604 2,604
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMBARE 704 - - 704 704
Armount dus to a director EN-482353 - - 46 1 16
Amount due to substantial shareholdr ENTEREE - - 25,125 25,125 25,125
3,308 - s 8479 28479
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(c) Fair values
The directors of the Company have considered
that the carrying amounts of all financial assets
and liabilities, other than those described in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements,
approximate their fair values at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013.

The following table sets out the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013 using
the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

31. MBIRE)

(c)

AFE
KRAREEREMEVBEER
BEGAMBHREWN 20/ E
BrROM ZEEmERER T —F
+TZA=t+—BEZZE—=F1+=
A=+—RAZRAFEREE -

TREFIE A EFEZHBFT A
RZE—WMF+-_A=+—HK
—E—=F+-_A=+—HzKEm
B HFEAE BB HREERE
13 REZ =4 :

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active F—E: EBRENITEHENER
markets for identical assets or ZHEREESBGEZ
liabilities that the entity can access at ER T IS WE (REH
the measurement date; ) o

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices FE: BRE-EZFRBRER
included within Level 1 that are S BESABCZE
observable for the asset or liability, ¥ ok i i m B AR B A\ 2R
either directly or indirectly; and %R

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the FoE: BEIBEZIUER
asset or liability. o A BURE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—E 5 FZE EH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET THET TET THEx

2014 —ZE-F

Recurring fair value measurement & &1 AT EE 2

Liabilities afE

Contingent consideration payable — FE[F S AK(E - - 109,825 109,825

2013 —E-ZfF

Recurring fair value measurement & &N TEE S

Liabilities &&

Contingent consideration payable ~ ERZHAKE = = - -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

Fair values (Cont’d)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

The fair value of contingent consideration
payable has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers notnected to the Group,
using Binominal model. The significant
unobservable input used in the fair value
measurement is expected volatility.

If 10% increase/decrease in fair value of
contingent consideration payable while all other
variable held constant, the loss for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$10,982,500 (2013: Nil).

The movements during the year in the balance
of the Level 3 fair value measurement are as
follows:

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

31. MBIR(E)

(c)

AFEE(E)
HE-_Z-NF+-_A=t—HRK
—E-=F+ZA=+—HIF
B EF-EBEBE_EBzRILEHE
% E-—BRE_ETEEARHE
HE=ZE - AEBBRREREH
RERAFEE R EERERRER
EA LR

BN AREZ A FERBLEE
& B XA E R EUR HT & E R B
A R~ 7] (B AN 5% 18] 4 B g ) 3%
A-EAEERUEL Z (hEME
B ERZEETABREBHAR
IERTERIRE - BRI RS B EM
T HEREFEERET

firt & FE T sk A R (B 2 F B IE
A 10% i H fb 7] 2 8RR 5
g FEBEESEN RSN
10,982,500 L (ZF — =4 :
).

FRAFEFEFEELHBZEH
FIE R -

2014 2013

—E-mE —T—=%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FAET

1 January —A—H - _
Amount arising from business

combination EGEHEEZRE 125,052 -

Fair value changes NHEE (15,227) -

At 31 December +=-A=+—8 109,825 -

SMEEGER)BRAT



Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 32. EXEM

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the directors of the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders and issue of new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 20183.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes trade and other payables,
contingent consideration payable, loan from
third party and shareholders, less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the
owners of the Company and non-controlling interests.

AEBEREEARE  WHRELEN
M2 BBHERRBIEHAE - BER
RFBEARGERE  ARREFHEHRHL
SNFREZBEEHE - REBRER
REBETHRGD - RBE-_T-—NOFER_
T—=F+-_A=+—HLFER B
MEIE  BORSEEFGRTE -

AEEAAEEABLRREREAR
R RMBEFERINEEARAME BF
o BNRARE  2BEFHERELZS
NEMEMNER  F=ENMERER
MEE MEEFEY - EXBERARQF
BB ARER SRR - RWE
IRz EERBELEMT

The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

2014 2013

—F-MNE —FT—=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TFET

Trade and other payables B 5 R HE MR 246,466 38,235

Contingent consideration payable FET SR ARIE 109,825 -

Amount due to a director BN —REEZHIA 5,429 5,537

Amount due to substantial FEAT E ERF IR

shareholder 26,245 25,106

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IR RIREEEY (20,316) (50,175)

Net debt BEFE 367,649 18,703
Equity attributable to: THATIEEREZ -

— owners of the Company S YNEIE Z= PN 101,026 17,798

— non-controlling interests — I AR RE 2 1,739 (16,369)

Total equity B 102,765 1,429

Capital and net debt EARNBEFEE 470,414 20,132

Gearing ratio BEAGELE 78.15% 92.90%
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 26 May 2014, the Group entered into the sale
and purchase agreement in which several terms were
subsequently amended by a supplemental agreement
dated 8 September 2014, (the “Agreements”) for
the acquisition of 51% equity interest in Shanghai
Zero2ipo M&A Fund Management Co., Ltd. and 100%
equity interest in Joint Victory Inc. (the “Acquisition”)
at maximum consideration of HK$255,000,000
subject to adjustment. The principal activities of
these two subsidiaries are disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Acquisition
was completed on 28 November 2014. Further details
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26
May 2014, 8 September 2014 and 5 December 2014.

The Acquisition is to allow the Group to pursue its
long term business diversification strategy by entering
into the investment management and consultancy
industry.

Pursuant to the Agreements, the maximum
consideration for the Acquisition of HK$255,000,000
comprises the initial consideration of HK$130,662,000
(the “Initial consideration”) and contingent
consideration up to a maximum of HK$124,338,000
(the “Contingent consideration payable”), and is to be
satisfied as follows:

(i)  RMB5,100,000 (equivalent to HK$6,324,000) in
cash upon completion of the Acquisition;

(i) a maximum of HK$124,338,000 by allotment
and issue of 276,306,666 Ordinary shares of
the Company at the issue price of HK$0.45 per
share; and

(i) a maximum of HK$124,338,000 (subject to
adjustment) by issue convertible bonds upon the
fulfillment of profit guarantees.

According to the Agreements, Contingent
consideration payable will be paid based on the
percentage of profit after tax of the acquired
subsidiaries in each of the years 2015 and 2016
compared to HK$25,500,000 respectively. The
directors consider it probable that the principal
amount of convertible bonds of HK$124,338,000 will
be issued.

= A 0 2 B 5
rE SRR M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

33. 38 H

RZEBE-—NERA=-+ B Xx&EE
FIVEEW#  ERBBEAHHAE-T
—MMFENANBZ@ERBRIETEE
WEEBE TN 2ZEER([HBE]) - AR
FHERELLSERIBRKEEEARR
A A) 2 51% M # & Joint Victory Inc. 2
100% & ([WEEE])  RELRA
255,000,000/8 7T (] F#AEE) o % M H
WEBARZ EZEBEHERGE TR
KM FES4A - WHEFHEE N T — Y
F+—AZTN\BEE - ELFEHRT
RAEARRBHAZZ—NERAZT
B ZZE—WNFLANAR-_Z—NF
+-ARBZRAE -

WEERRERAEEEBEAREE
BRERTE  BTAREEHZ T
SRS -

BiEwE  KWESFHE2RELERA
255,000,000 % T © B IE I F R E
130,662,000/ 7T ([ 1 F (B |) Rk A
RE&S LR A124,338,000/% 7T ([ fE
M ARED - AT AL -

() ANER¥5100,0007T (B ERL
6,324,000 7T ) 45 7 W BE F 18 =
& AR & ST

(i) F&=124,338,000/8 ¢ (8] FFHEE)
1% 335 3 i 3% & 3£ 17276,306,666 %
KA TR BITESR
0.45%7T : &

(ii) 7% 124,338,000% 7L (7] T 3§%)
PR RIR B R R T A
BREH A -

BER® - BN AREBEESREMK
BHBATR - E—RER_T—XE
BE ZBRF1& 5 A L $25,500,00078 7T
ZEADRFES c EERABET
N4 %8124,338,00058 7T 2 7] # i% & %
2 EEE -
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)

On 28 November 2014, the Acquisition was
completed and the fair values of the consideration are
as follows:

NOTES TO THE CQNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N e e I
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

. BBAHE)

R-Z—ME+—HA=-+1\B - WiE=E
EETEK  RIEBZAFEDT :

HK$’000
FET
Initial consideration T RE

Cash Re 6,436
Ordinary shares B 96,707
103,143

Contingent consideration payable JE S ARE
Convertible bonds AR EH 125,052
Total consideration BRIE 228,195

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent qualified professional values, Vigers
Appraisal & Consulting Limited to determine fair value
of Ordinary shares (market value of Ordinary shares)
of Initial consideration and convertible bonds of
Contingent consideration payable to be recognised in
accordance with HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”
issued by HKICPA. The Contingent consideration
payable is classified as financial liability, measured
at fair value through profit or loss within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,160,000
have recognised and included in administrative and
operating expenses.

The recognised amounts of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
Acquisition are as follows:

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ARBEEZBBIAEREXMGERM
BRI EENEERARAR @ AEE
NEREZ BB (ERRME) RERM
HARRE 2 JRBES 2 A FEIMRE
BEGFMAGRM BBV BHREE
Al AP EHEIERAFE - BHRA
RESBLSE DG ERNEI95 [ B 5
TH:BRALEIBEANZERER
BRATEABZHBEE -

I B A8 B8 K AN 2 & %2 & 1,160,000 7
T ERTTE R EERASTER AR
q: °
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)
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33. XBEH(E)

Shanghai
Zero2ipo
M&A Fund
Management
Co. Ltd. Total
LiEiER & Joint
BREEE Victory
BRAT Inc. st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 295 - 295
Intangible assets mEE 56,009 - 56,009
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 22,366 - 22,366
Current assets MBEE
Trade and other receivables 25 M H BRI 197,231 - 197,231
Cash and cash equivalents ReNMEEEED 724 - 724
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAER IR (211,058) - (211,058)
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE (14,002) - (14,002)
Net assets acquired EWEEESE 51,565 - 51,565
Goodwill arising on Acquisition is calculated as follows: W EEEA I EHENT -
Shanghai
Zero2ipo
M&A Fund
Management
Co. Ltd. Total
LigER e Joint
BREEE Victory
ARAT Inc. st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET TAET
Total consideration BRE 228,195 - 228,195
Non-controlling interest JEIE RS RE RS 25,267 - 25,267
253,462 - 253,462
Less: net assets acquired B BWEEEFE 51,565 - 51,565
Carrying amount of goodwill ez REE 201,897 - 201,897

Goodwill arose on the Acquisition because the
business potential of the acquired subsidiaries can
provide consultancy and fund management services in

the PRC.

W EREEE LM E 2 [RE T URREM
BARERTEEHEREESEER
%% o
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33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Cont’d)
None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for

tax purposes.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= AR

AR e B ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

33. XBEH(E)

TERABL B B B B IR AR L 0O, o

HK$’000
FHET

Net Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WERB AT ZIRSHEAFEE
Cash and cash equivalent acquired Bl R RIS EEY 724

The non-controlling interests of 49% in Shanghai
Zero2ipo M&A Fund Management Co. Ltd. at the date
of Acquisition was measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of identified net assets of Shanghai Zero2ipo
M&A Fund Management Co. Ltd.

The Acquisition contributed turnover of HK$1,813,000
and increased net loss of HK$4,230,000 to the
Group for the period from 29 November 2014 to
31 December 2014. If the Acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2014, the turnover and loss of the
Group would have increased by HK$21,893,000 and
decreased by HK$7,983,000 respectively.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

REHE £ EBEBFMIRIREEE
BIRDA]Z49%IF 12 A s 5 IR 2 IR
#aER LSRN IBREEERRAR
BB EEFERIRSE LD BT
.

RZE—NF+—A=Z+NLBE=-ZF
—hFE+_A=+—HBHK  kEEHE
HRIANSEEZ $£%81,813,00078 7T & &5
187 584,230,000/ 7T © WK EER
—ET-NE—-A—BET AEEZE
X5 BB S Rl HN21,893,0007% T
K235 427,983,000 7T e
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

34. MIBAE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the (a) AASZHBASFBWT :
Company are as follows:
Issued and .
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ '“L"’%St held by
registered  the ompany
Place of capital FAFRAL
incorporation/ Form of BEAR it bl
Name operation legal entity BREA/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
28 Al EERY EARRNS iftdd  EE  EE IERE
Asian Information Resources  The British Virgin -~ International business US$200  100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited® Islands company 200%T &R
ABRABE AREEAT
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$11,228,290 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited" (3 BREERT 11,228, 290470 REER
ENRERRAE
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100% Provision of treasure functions
Finance Limited £ BREMAR 2T 10 group companes
REERIREERRHE
Asian Information Resources  Hong Kong Limited liability HKS2 - 100% Provision of administration
Investment Limited Bk EREAAT 2R services 1o group
companies
REBRARETHRSE
Asian Information Resources ~ Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
Marketing Limited 55 EREFAH 10,0007 iEE%
Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$100,000 - 9%  Investment holding
BENRARAA B EREAAR 100,000/ 7 REER
Vega International Group Ltd.”  The British Virgin -~ International business US$5  100% = Investment holding
Islands company SETT REER
ABRAEE BREEAT
Vega Capital Ltd." The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of corporate
ENESREBRHARRA  hE EREEAT AE%10,000,0007 finance and management
consultancy services
RUGFHEREREARY
Guangzhou Wavecorn The PRC Limited liability RMB10,500,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
Communications and HE BREMAR 10,500,007 provision of internet
Advertising Limited” broadband business
ENERERRSARAA management senvices
BERRELERS
BREHEERY
South Pearl Limited* The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 58%  Provision of internal protocol
BENERRGARIE hE EREEAA AR 20,000,000 television services
ERAR RETBRSHRY

SMEEGER)BRAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE—F—WWEF+—A=1+—HIFE

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 34. MIBAT (&)
(a) Particulars of the subsidiaries of the (a) EATZMBASFENT : (&)
Company are as follows: (Cont’d)

Issued and .
fully paid ~_Proportion of

share capital/  interest held by
registered the Company

Place of capital FLTRFL
incorporation/ Form of BEAR fEmithl
Name operation legal entity BERE/ Directly Indirectly Principal activities
28 HREL EERY EARENS ifdd  EE  EE IEER
Shanghai Zero2ipo M&A Fund  The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Provision of private investment
Management Co., Ltd* e BREMAG AR10,000,0007C fund management services,
LR BREERERD A private securlties, private
equity and venture capital
investments
REBAREZLEERE -
IAER  LERERER
BRRE
Jonit Victory Inc.* Samoa Limited liability USS1 - 100% Provision of business
EED EREAAH %7 management and
consulting services in Asia
Pacific region
REARREEHERR
BRRE
Kasun Asian Capital Resources  Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1,000,000 - 55% Provision of capital
Management Limited* B iGN 1,000,00037C management and related
AT NEEERARAR activities in Asia Pacific
region
REARRUEEAERR
By
MITEREREEEFRDF The PRC Limited liabilty 1S$400,000 - 100% Provision of investment
hE EREFAH 400,000%7 management and
consulting services
RTEERRERRY
*  Companies not audited by Cheng & Cheng Limited * ZERRNABBE G EHAE

R amEZ -
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(b)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
RE-F-—ME+=A=+—ALFE

34. EBATBI(E)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that (b) FEZEMEBLAB(BEEKRIEEER
has material non-controlling interests ) 258

The following table lists out the information TREDIEAEEEGHE NI EE
relating to each of subsidiaries of the Group Bz SHBRARBBZER
which has material non-controlling interests TREVNZHBERREZREAD
(NCI). The summarised financial information AR SHAT.C 288 o

presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

Biztech Company Limited

2014 2013
—F-mE —T—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000

HERRAERAT THERT FHET
NCI percentage FERERA DL 9% 9%
Current assets BB E 19,838 30,083
Non-current assets ERBEE 19 1,268
Current liabilities mENAE (204,372) (199,678)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - (254)
Net liabilities BEFE (184,515) (168,581)
NCI FEPRRS M 2 3,905 1,315
Deficit attributable to owners of BEREERARES A

Biztech Company Limited FEAG 2 s &t (180,610) (167,266)
Carrying amount of NCI FEIE IR 2 AR 16,255 15,054
Revenue Wz 124,463 153,756
Loss for the year FNEE (14,164) (13,564)
Total comprehensive loss FHBEERE (14,141) (13,519)
Loss allocated to NCI SELFIEE i 2 B 1R 1,276 1,220
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR ER AR - -
Cash flows (used in)/from operating K& E&E(FFH) E4E

activities ZHRERE (4,699) 103
Cash flows used in investing WEEHELEZIRETRE

activities (25) -
Cash flows (used in)/from financing ~ BEEE)(FTE) B4

activities BeEne (3,597) 13,101

TMEE(ER)BRA T 133



Annual Report 2014

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Re BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE—FT—MF+A=—+—HIFE

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 34. MIBAT (&)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary (b) FEZEMEBLAB(BEEKRIEEER
that has material non-controlling interests ) ZHEE)
(Cont’d)

Shanghai Zero2ipo M&A Fund

Management Company Limited HK$’000
LBERYRREEERRAT FHET
NCI percentage FEIERERB DL 49%
Current assets mENEE 144,618
Non-current assets EMENEE 123,125
Current liabilities mEaE (210,198)
Non-current liabilities JEmMBAE (12,719)
Net assets BEFE 44,826
Carrying amount of NCI FEVERRE = 2 BREE (21,965)
Revenue Wz 313
Loss for the year FAEIE (5,722)
Total comprehensive income 2EIMABRE =
Loss allocated to NCI SBL T IEE R 2 B 1R 2,804
Dividend paid to NCI SN T IERE R 2 2 AR -
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBEEZRESRE 242
Cash flows from investing activities RERDELECRENRE -
Cash flows from financing activities EXBeRE -
No comparative figures have been presented as R ZA9% FEIERERTIE X B
the 49% non-controlling interest was arisen from HE2-_Z-—WNUFE+-_A=1+—H
business combination occurred during the year IFFERNEE 7 EHBESH - AP
ended 31 December 2014. EEMLEBHT -

134 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_F—MFf-A=1—HIFE

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 34. MBAS (&)

(c) Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary (c) MR—HEMEBASIZHEEEERET
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the HE - ZE—=#+—_HA=+—81
Group disposed of 9% of its interest in Biztech FE - AEBHEERNBEERITAS
Company Limited, reducing its continuing BT Z9% DS » B HEHISER
interest to 91%. No proceeds on disposal was HRADEIIY% - WEGREBEHE
received. An amount of HK$13,848,000 (being EU AT (A BT 15 78  13,848,000/5
the proportionate share of the carrying amount T (ERELRBEEREARATE
of the deficit attributable to the owner of Biztech MBEEEZLHME) D EREIE
Company Limited) was transferred to non- TR R ET A BEHE S o
controlling interests and credited to accumulated
losses.

ASSOCIATE 35. BIEAT

Particulars of the associate of the Company are AATIBHEATIZHEBNT -

as follows:

Proportion of interest
Place of Issued and  held by the Company
incorporation/  Form of fully paid ~ AATEEZESILH  Principal

Name operation legal entity share capital Directly Indirectly  activities

¥4 AMEERE GEERES CRORYRRE E& B FEEH

Best Concept Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 - 40%  Property investment

BHEZERRR &k ARAT] 1087 NERE

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 36. LB

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified ETHBREREEN D BNERFE L

to conform with current year’s presentation. 2R -

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 37. MBHRRZHE

These consolidated financial statements were hEGFEMBEREENR_E—0LF=H
approved and authorised for issue by the Company’s SHREARARREFTSH AL HET
Board of Directors on 30 March 2015. o
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